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Business Description

Newell Rubbermaid is a global marketer of consumer and commercial products that touch the lives of people where they
work, live and play. We are committed to building a company of Brands That Matter™ while leveraging the benefits of being
one company, including shared expertise, operating efficiencies and the fostering of a culture that produces best-in-class
results. Qur evolution as a global company is driven by our growing understanding of the constantly changing needs of
consumers and our ability to create innovative, highly differentiated solutions that offer great performance and value.

Financial Highlights

Net Sales Gross Margin Operating Income®
($ in millions) 1§ in miflions}
(internaf sales growth) {as a % of net sales)
$6,407 35.2% $826.3
$6,201
i, : gabps 12.0%,
8. 7%
$5,717
2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007
“Normalized” EPS™ Strategic SG&A Return on Invested Capital”
{as a % of net safes)
$1.82 6.2% 13.7%
12.1%
+1 Bl]hps
10.3% SEE0DS
. l
2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007

(1) Defined as net sales growth excluding significant acquisitions.
(2} Please refer to the Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures, provided as part of this annual report, for a reconciliation to the mest directly comparable GAAP financial measuire.

Segment Overview

With some of the world's
most trusted names such as
Rubbermaid® and Levolor®,
we provide consumers high-
quality, innovative solutions
for window fashions, home
storage, indoor and outdoor
organization, food storage
and cleaning and refuse.

Rubbermaid |

& LEVOLOR

As the global leader in writing
instruments, labeling sulutions,
and office organization and
technology, we offer a powerful
brand lineup led by the Sharpie®,
Parker®, Dymao®, Uni-ball®,
Paper Mate®, Expo®* and
Waterman® brands, among
others, to both businesses

and individual consumers.

Shanpie. DYMO

PAPERIMATE.
05PARKER' WATERMAN, @}

Through a broad offering of
premium hand tools, power tool
accessories, propane torches,
manual paint applicators and
cabinet and window hardware,
leading brands such as Lenox™,
Inwin® and Amerock® help
professional and do-it-yourself

users get the job done right.

LENOG#&
IRWIN.

Clreeming, Cirzanizeinm & Dieer Ofifies Paiues Yauls & Rerdowre (hormirg & Fexmily ﬂ
Sales Sales Sales Sates
(in millions) {in millions) {in millions} (tn millions)
$2,096 $2,042 $1,289 $980

With established brand leaders
including Calphalon® Gruco®and
Goody®, names that represent the
highest commitment to quality,
we offer consumers an expansive
line of premium kitchenware,
infant and juvenile products and

hair care accessories.

QD Gac>

CalphalonZs
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Through insight that
leads to innovation. ..

We are transforming Newell Rubbermaid into a global,
consumer-centric company by investing in research that
helps us to better understand our target consumers and their
needs. In turn, these insights are helping us to develop
breakthrough product innovations that deliver meaning-
ful solutions. We create consumer demand by investing in
marketing and promotion activities that are as targeted and
innovative as the products they represent. This virtuous
cycle of brand building is designed to yield premium
margins that can be reinvested to sustain growth.

Left: Brands That Matter start with an understanding of the specific needs of our
target consumers in order to create innovative solutions. Right from top: Rubbermaid's
Produce Saver keeps food fresher, longer | Goody's Start, Style and Finish collection
provides innovative tools for each distinctive step in the hair styling process | The Sharpie
Ultrafine Retractable Marker makes 1t easy and fun to click and write with precision |
Levolor Roman shades feature a patent-pending Top Down/Bottom Up with Cordless
Lift technology to position the shades for desired light controf and privacy.




...and through
expansion to
new categories,
new countries.

Our strong brands are expanding into new product

categories and geographic markets to help
sustain growth. We are extending trusted names
that perform well in their original categories
\::: e
to near-neighbor categotiés:through new product
innovation. Similarly, we are working to understand
consumers in local markets around the globe so
that we can customize and adapt our products
to meet their unique needs and cultures.
This page: The Lenox brand is expanding globally with the Lenox Q™ series
bandsaw blade providing long life and fast cutting. Top right: Rubbermard
Commercial Products® continues fo expand into new categories, with products
such as the Pulse™ Fioor Cleaning System, Microfiber Cleaning Cart and
Commercial Vacuums offering better, faster cleaning solutions. Bottom left:
Rubbermaid Fast Track™ exarplifies category expansion with its durable
garage organization system, Bottom right: Calphalon's design leadership in

cookware has inspired Calphalon cutlery, featuring expert craftsmanship
and award-winning design.
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We will be a more productive
and efficient company

By adopting best‘pr”éctices and
leveraging One-Newell Rubbermaid

. A world-class, co'nsumer-dl;iven branding company supports its brand
portfolio by ensuring that the company’s products are delivered at the best total
cost. We are now working as One Newell Rubbermaid to optimize center-led
functions such as distribution, transportation and other shared services.
We are -continuin"g to deliver good progress in making our operational footprint
ntjldpre cost effective and efficient, while delivering improved customerservice.

4o
SREEL  We are extending best practices across.our-btisinesses and-suppliérs. We are

s~

/1mp1ementmg a worldmde enterprise resource platform to optimize operations.
-
All of these 1 initiatives are leadmg to a more productive organization that can

remvest its savings 1r{to bulldlng brands and long-term capabilities. !

/
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Mum-branded distribution facilities that are s strategicalﬂf located in regions across the globe will result in cost
savings, improved efficiency and enhanced customer service.
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Enhanced capabilities lead to
best-in-class results

Consumer-centric strategies can only be executed successfully by a consumer-centric

culture. Accordingly, cultural change is a critical element in Newell Rubbermaid’s
transformation. Our people and processes must be as innovative and brand-focused,
diverse and global as our businesses. This means building a highly collaborative,
team-oriented organization that can work as one; orgé.}lizing into global business
units that have a worldwide view of their operations; and investing in training and
development programs that build world-class expertise. All of this will foster a
culture that produces best-in-class results.

Top: Our comprehensive series of Marketing Excellence training programs have been designed to build long-term capabilities
in marketing at every level of the company. Bottom left; Consurmer interviews are a critical component of understanding the
end-user to enhance product innovation and marketing plans. Bottom right: Conselidated regional headquarters, such as our
Hong Kong office, are designed to improve collaboration and facilitate sharing of best practices across the company.
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Dear tellow shareholders,

In 2007, we made excellent progress in our multi-year
etfort to transform Newell Rubbermaid into a global
company of Brands That Matter and great people, known

for best-in-class results.

Our strategic focus on developing our
brand-building eapabilities, achieving best
cost, leveraging the power of One Newell
Rubbermaid and creating a culture of
excellence will enable us to generate
sustainable sales and earnings growth

well into the future.

Meeting and Exceeding our
Financial Commitments

We are pleased to report that in 2007, we
once again delivered on all of our financial
commitments, continuing the growth
“trifecta” of higher top-line sales, healthy

gross-margin expansion and increased

operating profit. Net sales rose 3.3 percent,
gross margins expanded 185 basis points
and operating income increased 14 percent
over the prior year, Since embarking upon
our transformation two years ago, we have
delivered 4 percent average annual inter-
nal sales growth, improved gross margins
from 30 pervent to 35 percent and achieved
over $200 million in operating income
improvement. This performance helped
drive a 46-percent increase in normalized
earnings per share and over $600 million in
annual operating cash flow. Qur investments
in strategic brand-building activities, fueled

by our significant gross margin expansion

] Gumpetition

Encovrages
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Superior
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and productivity-enhancing initiatives,
are paying off as we advance in our multi-

year transformation.

Continued Progress on

Key Strategic Initiatives

In 2007, we made considerable progress
on our Marketing Build & Transform
initiative, which is focused on creating
a best-in-class consumer branding
capability. We have developed a detailed
blueprint and roadmap for achieving
brand-building excellence over time, com-
plete with annual targets and measures.
We have also recruited top executive talent
from some of the world’s leading consumer
products companies and launched a
comprehensive series of Marketing
Excellence training programs, covering
both basic and advanced curriculums.
To support the key activities that lead to
consumer understanding, innovation and
demand creation, we boosted our invest-
ment in strategic brand building to 6.2
percent of sales, a 60-percent increase over

the past two years.




We reshaped our organizational structure
to establish Global Business Units (GBUs)
as the core organizing concept of our busi-
ness. To achieve long-term success, we must
leverage our brands, technology, supply
chain, consumer and competitor under-
standing and people on a giobal basis.
The new GBU structure will help support
growth across all business units and regions
while ensuring an appropriate cost struc-
ture. Each of our GBUs has been tasked
with creating and executing strategic plans
to drive what we call the “New Virtuous
Cycle” This framework outlines the process
for creating differentiated products with
a best-in-class cost structure, backed by
investments in superior branding, to
achieve premium margins - thus creating
funds for strategic reinvestment in the
brands to perpetuate this growth cycle.
Our new organizational structure will
further enable our businesses to win with
their unique consumers and customers
and beat the relevant competition.

We continue to deliver on our initiatives
to achieve best cost in our manufacturing
and sourcing operations and to leverage
the power of One Newell Rubbermaid.
Qur Project Acceleration restructuring
program, which produced cost savings of
$60 million in 2007, remains on track to
provide over $150 million in annualized
savings by the end of 2009. We have
begun consolidating our distribution and
transportation activities across the com-

pany to achieve better scale and efficiency.

Mark Ketchum
President and Chief Executive Officer

Over the past two years, our distribution
facility footprint has shrunk from almost
100 distribution centers to fewer than 80,
with a goal of reaching approximately 50
over the next two years.

In October, we successfully launched
SAP* at our North American Office Products
business, marking the first major mile-
stone in our multi-year rollout of this
enterprise resource platform. SAP will
be a key enabler of best-in-class business
processes across the organization. We
have invested significant resources in this
project, and we are pleased to have had
a seamless transition to the new system
in our North American Office Products
business. Qur first launch has provided a
useful roadmap and solid base of experi-

ence to reapply as we approach our next

development, integrity and best-in-class
results. I have learned from experience
that cultural values can have as much
impact on a company’s performance as its
strategy. Our support of globally shared
values and behaviors, directly linked to
our vision, will enable us to deliver strong
business results and successfully face even

the most difficult challenges.

Levers for Sustainable Growth
As we look to 2008 and beyond, we are
focused on achieving sustainable growth
throughout the organization. We are invest-
ing in building the long-term capabilities
that build real shareholder value and con-
fidence, I am proud of the men and women
of Newell Rubbermaid for their hard work

and dedication to delivering the positive

As we look to 2008 and beyond, we
are focused on achieving sustainable

growth throughout the organization.

go-live in the Home & Family segment
later this year.

Lastly, we are continuing to effect the
culture change necessary to support
our evolution inte a top-tier consumer
branding and marketing company. As a
company we have identified and embraced
a common set of company values centered
around consumer-focused brand building,

collaboration, diversity and people




Our portfolio screening criteria targets companies with

consumer-meaningful brands that are responsive to innovation

and marketing, favorable customer and channel dynamics,

global categories with strong margin and growth potential
and synergy with our core categories and competencies.

results we have seen over the past two
years. We recognize that an uncertain
macroeconomic outlook in the United
States will create additional headwinds
for us in 2008. Despite these additional
challenges, we remain confident that the
diversity of our portfolio and the many
growth levers in our control will enable
us to continue driving top-line growth,

expanding gross margins and growing

operating income and earnings per share.

Qur continued investment in building
Brands That Matter and developing
long-term capabilities will be key.

One important lever is our healthy
pipeline of new products. In 2008, we
expect to have notable new product
launches across all of our operating
segments, some of which are featured in
this annual report. We have attractive
opportunities to grow share by offering
differentiated products and great value.
In most of our categories, market shares
are not concentrated and competition is
fragmented. During 2007, we achieved
market share gains on several of our
important brands including Dymo, Expo,
(Goody, Calphalon, Levolor, Lenox and
Rubbermaid Commercial Products®.

In addition to consumer-meaningful inno-

vation, the opportunities for near-neighbor

12

category expansion are very robust. Asa
case in point, our Rubbermaid Commercial
business delivered double-digit sales growth
in 2007, driven significantly by creative
offerings in new product categories such
as microfiber cleaning systems and deco-
rative waste management. Finally, global
penetration by many of our brands is low,

which creates tremendous opportunities

to expand internationally. During the year

we experienced double-digit sales growth
outside of the United States, and we expect
this trend to continue in 2008.

Strategic acquisitions will also play
a role as we move forward. Our 2008
outlook anticipates healthy cash flow,
in line with our performance in recent
years. Over the years, successful major
acquisitions such as Dymo and Lenox,
as well as smaller additions to the port-
folio, have helped us spur innovation and
expand into new markets and product
categories. The objective for all of our
acquisitions is to enhance sustainable
growth and to reward shareholders. Our
portfolio screening criteria targets
companies with consumer-meaningful
brands that are responsive to innovation
and marketing, favorable customer and

channel dynamics, global categories with

strong margin and growth potential

and synergy with vur core categories
and competencies. Locking across our
portfolio, the most attractive acquisition
targets today lie in Office Technology,
Rubbermaid Commercial Products,
Industrial Tools and all three categories
within the Home & Family segment.
We are proud of the accomplishments
of 2007 and the progress we have made
in our transformation into a top-tier,
consumer-branding and marketing orga-
nization. Qur ultimate goal is to be best-
in-class, which we know will take several
years to achieve. The good news is that
we are reaping the benefits of our trans-
formation at every step along the way. In
2008, we look forward to building upon
the solid foundations laid over the past
two years, It is an exciting time for Newell
Rubbermaid. We thank you for your
continued support and encourage you to

watch what happens next,

Sincerely,

/%@%:=

Mark D. Ketchum
President & Chief Executive Officer

March 28, 2008




Next steps:
How we get there




Next steps:
Generating sustainable growth

We are developing best-in-class, brand-building capabilities and practices that

drive superior growth. This process will be enabled by common brand-building

frameworks and processes that are deployed across our consumer, commercial

and industrial businesses globally.

Increased Consumer Insight
Deep end-user insights are becomning
a primary driver of business decisions.

We are increasing our use of proven
research techniques to gain a superior
understanding of our consumers and
how they relate to our brands. From
these proprietary insights, we develop
well-grounded and focused brand
strategies that are compelling,
differentiated and ingrained

within the organization. We use
insights to help us focus on those

=%

. , those toward whom we can target

consumers who matter more
to the category and to our brand -

“ our marketing efforts to dispro-

) . N “"\ portionately grow and
. ) ) strengthen our brands.
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4. MINI -
= MINI el Sy, Newell Rubbermaid is bringing
N ' 3 greater discipline to the innovation

process. We have enhanced our

E

o %MINIW

2 . ideation and discovery capabilities,

41/4,/ ' e ‘ A allowing us to identify important
o : 3 (;_, unmet consumer needs that can form
the basis for new product platforms.
Once a discovery space is identified,
we rapidly formulate and iterate con-
cepts to find the best way to address the
unmet need, leveraging our knowledge
of the consumer and the marketplace.
Promising concepts are tested and
refined with consumers. The best con-
cepts that emerge are then developed

4 Sharpie made its successful debut
in the United Kingdom during 2007.

i
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Endicia, acquired in 2007 to expand our office
products platform, is the trusted leader in Internet
postage, saving time and money for consumers.

into prototypes and tested again with
consumers in structured and in-home
environments. Pricing is optimized
based on what the consumer is willing
to pay for the benefit the product
delivers. We then work backward from
a desired margin to identify a target
cost and formulate a supply strategy.
By following this well-defined process,
we are ensuring the introduction of
innovative new products that meet
consumer needs and strengthen our
consumers’ emotional relationship
with our brands.

Successful Commercialization
Successful commercialization requires
investment and critical evaluation
to develop and implement marketing




Team Hackman® fealures
a team of master cufters
that conducts events
to demonstrate the
superior performance
of Lenox products.

The new frwin
Marathon® with
WeldTec™ saw blade
features patented

carbide teeth for long
blade life and durability.

campaigns that are as targeted and
innovative as the brands they promote.
Consumer-driven innovation requires
effective communication with our
target audience. We use our consumer
understanding to identify the points
when the consumer touches our
categories and brands and is most
receptive to messaging. Understand-
ing these points of influence helps
us form an ongoing relationship and
dialog with our consumers so that we
deliver the most compelling messages
in ways that drive a superior return
on marketing investment.

Increased Investment in Strategic
Brand Building and SG&A

We are committed to making the
investments necessary to create an
effective brand-building organization
and superior processes. Since 2005,
we have increased our investment in
strategic brand building almost 60
percent. In 2007, our brand-building
investment surpassed 6 percent of

428 IRWIN. =7

" industrial Tools

I W
o

The Irwin “Dernand Team" grassroots marketing
initiative goes on the job site to educate professionals
about the brand's line of industrial tools.

sales for the first time. We also are
monitoring and measuring these
investments carefully to ensure that
we are investing in the highest-impact
programs and activities,

Geographic Expansion

Today, 20 percent of Newell
Rubbermaid sales are outside of North
America, and only a handful of our
brands account for most of these sales.
The balance of our brand portfolio
represents a significant opportunity
for international expansion. Some of
our strongest brands have not yet been
introduced to consumers outside
North America. For example, Sharpie
is the number-one marker brand in the
United States, but the brand is just
beginning to expand to other coun-
tries. With an initial launch in the
United Kingdom during 2007, Sharpie
is expected to increase sales signifi-
cantly over the next year in the United
Kingdom as we make significant
investments to drive distribution and
consumer awareness and demand.

Near-Neighbor Category Expansion
Our brands are crossing to near-
neighbor categories to create opportu-
nities for growth as well. Rubbermaid
Commercial has expanded into
microfiber cleaning equipment and
medical carts. Irwin and Lenox have
extended their core franchises into
knives and blades, pliers, wrenches,
levels, measuring tapes and worksite
storage. Calphalon has taken superior
design capabilities with respect to cook-
ware and extended those capabilities
to & suite of premium cutlery products.
As we build the image of cur brands in
the hearts and minds of our consumers,
the ability to extend them into near-
neighbor categories is an excellent
way to leverage our investments in
consumer understanding, innovation
and commercialization in order to
generate continued revenue growth.
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Next steps:

Increasing productivity and efficiency

A key part of positioning Newell Rubbermaid for long-term success is optimizing

our cost structure and leveraging the power of one company. We are implementing

numerous initiatives that will achieve these goals and lead to further expansion

of gross margins.

Manufacturing and Sourcing

Qur new business model is focused on
achieving the best product cost at the
right quality and service levels, often by
engaging supply partners in low-cost
countries. In the process of making this
transformation, we have rationalized our
manufacturing and sourcing footprint.
By the end of 2008, we expect to have
fewer than 40 company-owned manu-
facturing sites and about half of our
production from sourcing partners. In
addition, we have shifted the majority
of our manufacturing from high- to
low-cost regions, with about 60 percent
expected to be manufactured in low-
cost countries by the end of 2008, as
compared to 16 percent in 2001.

Leveraging One Newell Rubbermaid
Historically, Newell Rubbermaid was
comprised of independent businesses
that provided all of the operations to
be a free-standing unit. In contrast, the
new Newell Rubbermaid recognizes
the power of leveraging the scale of
the total company through shared sup-
portservices and common business

—_—————— oy

Automation within multi-branded distribution centers is leading to increased productivity and improved
customer service.

practices. As we build these consoli-
dated capabilities, we are striking a
careful balance between centralizing
what is common and maintaining
independence on what is unique.
Activities that are not materially
different from business to business
are our prime candidates for achieving
scale advantage. These activities
include back-office shared services,
procurement, distribution, transpor-
tation and information technology.

Distribution Center Optimization
Rationalizing our global distribution
network is helping not only to reduce
transportation costs, but also to improve

shipping efficiency and customer service,
During 2007, we took significant steps
toward leveraging distribution across
the company to achieve low-cost,
logistical excellence. For example, we
completed and opened a new 400,000-
square-foot consolidated distribution
center in Victorville, California. Similarly,
we have announced plans for a new
800,000-square-foot multi-branded
distribution center in Atlanta, Georgia,
to service the Southeast. Within the
next two years, the company’s global
distribution footprint should be reduced
to approximately 50 facilities, nearly
half the number that existed prior to the
start of this global initiative.

!




A shared multi-branded distribution center ships
innovative products to a diverse base of customers
around the world.

Shared Services

As part of our efforts to leverage
One Newell Rubbermaid, we have
made significant progress in unifying
the shared activities across the com-
pany. We have improved efficiency
and reduced costs by centralizing
at the corporate level certain adminis-
trative functions including cash
management, accounting systems,
order processing, billing, credit,

accounts receivable collections,
data processing and legal functions.
These shared services concentrate
technical expertise in one location,
making it easier to communicate,
observe overall business trends and
manage the company’s businesses.
The transition of services to the
Shared Service Center in Europe is
approximately 90 percent complete,
and we are expanding the scope of
shared services in the United States
and Latin America.

SAP Implementation Company-Wide
SAP is our choice for an enterprise
resource platform to be implemented
across all of Newell Rubbermaid.
SAP will be a key enabler to achieving
company-wide productivity and
optimization opportunities within
shared services, global sourcing,
supply-chain management and
indirect spending. Initially launched
in 2007, SAP will be rolled out over
a five-year horizon to minimize com-
plexity and assure standardization.

Numbher of Distribution GCenters
Utilization Rate

Average Size (sq ft)

Distribution and Transportation Optimization

2005 2007 3-Yr Vision
9 80 o 2

~68% 14%

145K

SAP — Newell Rubbermaid successfully
faunched SAP within Office Products —
North America in 2007.

Sharpie Runs SAP

We have invested the required resources
to ensure the successful rollout of SAP.
Its launch in October 2007 at our North
American Cffice Products business unit
went extremely well. This initial go-live
is a significant step forward in our rollout
of SAP. The launch has provided a solid
base of experience to reapply as we
implement this best-in-class business-
process enabler across the organization.

SAP Implementation Timing

'07 ‘08 08 10 ' 12
i+ North America (three waves)
Europe

M Rest of World

SAP® is a registered trademark of SAP Aktiengeselischaft.
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Next steps:

Changing the culture

Culture can have as much impact on a company's performance as does its strategy.

That's why we're transforming how our employees work together as we become a

global consumer-driven marketing company.

During 2007, we worked hard to begin
bringing this culture to life. We intro-
duced 2 new set of corporate values to
employees and had honest conversa-
tions about what will be required to
realize our cultural aspirations. In fact,
Newell Rubbermaid employees around
the world are attending educational
sessions designed to fully communi-
cate the transformative journey that
our company and our people have
embarked upen.

Consumer-Centric
Even though we are all consumers,

it is not easy to become a consumer-
centric company overnight. It requires
a mindset change whereby every

employee, at every level, understands
and embraces our philosophy that the
consumer is the focus of everything we
do. To lead this effort, we
recruited Senior Vice
President of Market-

more than two decades of best-in-class
consumer products experience from
Procter & Gamble. We have also brought
in numerous senior marketing leaders
with a history of brand-building at
other consumer-centric companies.
We looked inside the company as well.
We identified the expertise we already
had and built upon it with accelerated
training and development.

Brand-Focused

Growing brands that matter to
consumers is at the heart of who we are,
so much so that we added the tagline,
“Brands That Matter,”to our corporate
logo in 2006. Tt is a concept that our
employees are truly embracing as
they become our brand ambassadors,
growing more passionate about how
consumers interact with and experi-
ence our brands. They understand
that a brand that matters is one that
connects emotionally with a consumer

ing and Brand
Management
Ted Woehrle,
who brings

because it solves a problem, instills

trust, offers convenience or provides an
innovation. Our employees also know
that we are creating an environment
in which everyone has the opportunity
to share feedback about our products,
to contribute ideas for new ones and
to participate in our mutual success.

Collahoration and Teamwork

The ahility to work with one another
across business units and across geo-
graphic regions is critical to meeting
our shared service and common-
business-practice goals. To this end, we
have consolidated our facilities abroad
to establish shared headquarters in
Paris for the Europe, Middle East and
Africa regions, and one for the Asia-
Pacific region in Hong Kong. In 2008,
we will co-locate several of our business
units and corporate functions into our
new global headquarters building
in Atlanta. These moves will enable
greater sharing of best practices and
malke it easier o leverage talent across
the organization. And we have created
a new organizational structure, based
on global business units, that will foster
collaboration in order to capture our
collective strengths.

Diverse Leadership _

A broad worldview is an essential
component of success for any global
consumer products company today.
Accordingly, a diverse workforce that
reflects the diversity of the markets we
serve helps us to better understand
the needs of our target consumers.




For example, we have increased our
recruitment efforts for women and
minority employees and put a greater
focus on developing diverse managers.
Our diversity philosophy embraces
both our differences and our similar-
ities, and advocates inclusion at every
level. To foster such an environment,
we have created the Office of Inclusion &
Diversity to help instill this philosophy
throughout the company. This group
exceeded its training goals in 2007 by
delivering diversity training to more
than 2,000 United States managers —
asignificant step toward realizing
our expectations in this critical area.

Social Responsibility

Our accomplishments as a responsible
corporate citizen of the world are a
key way we judge our success as a
company. Responsible citizenship

.
Ceogers -
Sales & Harketey

We are actively recruiting a new generation of
brand-focused marketers in order to build fong-
term capabilities in marketing at every level of
the company.

encompasses inclusion and diversity,
community investment and sustain-
ability initiatives.

In the past year our community
commitment, in particular, has
expanded with the launch of a central-
ized corporate philanthropy program,
“Investing in Community™” As part
of this launch, we hosted a Week
of Caring donation drive in our United
States facilities and announced an
initial planned spend of $2 million
annually beginning in 2008,

By encouraging employee activism
and linking our corporate philanthropy
directly to the consumers we serve,
we are able to share our success with
those who help build our success.

The inclusion Leadership Team coordinates
company-wide diversity management
efforts and davelops plans for strategic
inclusion management.

Talent Development

Reshaping a culture also requires
training and development. To this end
we are investing in a variety of pro-
grams that have one common goal - to
maximize the potential of every indi-
vidual in our company. For example,
more than 700 marketing employees
completed “Marketing 101" global
training last year. To encourage career
advancement, we launched “Careers
That Matter™” an online recruiting and
applicant-tracking system that matches
employees’ skills and interests with
open positions across the company.

Giobal Company

A global company requires a global
structure that can maximize global
opportunity. In 2007, we introduced
a new organizational platform built
around Global Business Units (GBUs)
and consolidated international regions.
GBUs enable us to better leverage our
understanding of the unique consumers
and competitors in a specific category
around the world. These units have
primary profit and loss responsibility
and will drive global brand-building
activities, such as consumer insight,
product innovation and manufacturing.

The new consolidated regional headquarters
in both Paris and Hong Kong will improve
global collaboration and facilitate sharing
of best practices.

Our Shared Values:
Delivering On Qur Vision

Cultural evolution is not easy, especially
for a company that has acquired and
divested businesses for over 100 years.
Though we all have “grown up” in a
variety of business settings around the
world, it is important that we all seek a
common ground in order to ensure the
success of a new Newell Rubbermaid.
To this end, more than 200 leaders
representing our businesses worldwide
engaged in a process to discover who
we are today and who we aspire to be.
From this discovery process, a value
statement emerged:

“At Newell Rubbermaid, we are proud
of who we are, We trust and expect
employees to live our values every day.
We understand our success is closely
linked to the relationship we have with
our shareholders, consumers, customers,
suppliers and the communities in which
we live and work.”

This statement is accompanied by
five values and beliefs:

QOur People: The success of our
company starts with our people.

Our Brands: Growing brands that
matter to consumers is at the heart
of who we are,

How We Work Together: We work as
a team and foster an environment of
global collaboration.

Results: We relentlessly strive to
achieve best-in-class results.

Integrity: Acting with utmost integrity
is the foundation upon which we grow.

Living our values every day will enable
us to become a global company of
Brands That Matter and great people,
known for best-in-class results.




Board of Directors

Michael T. Cowhig retired in December 2006 as President,
Global Technical and Manufacturing of The Procter &
Gamble Company - Gillette GBU (a manufacturer and
marketer of consumer products), a post he held since
October 1, 2005. Prior thereto, he held the position of
President, Global Technical and Manufacturing of The
Gillette Company from January 2004 to October 2005,
Mr. Cowhig joined Gillette in 1968, and thereafter served
in a variety of roles, including Senior Viee President, Global
Manufacturing and Technical Operations - Stationery
Products from 1996 to 1997, Senior Vice President,
Manufacturing and Technical Operations - Grooming
from 1997 to 2000, Senior Vice President, Global Supply
Chain and Business Development from 2000 to 2002,
and Senior Vice President, Global Manufacturing and
Technical Operations from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Cowhig
is also a director of CCL Industries, a global manufac-
turer of specialty packaging and labeling solutions for
the consumer products and healtheare industries.

Scott S. Cowen has been the President of Tulane
University and Seymour S. Geodman Memorial
Professor of Business since 1998. From 1984 to 1998,
Dr. Cowen served as Dean and Albert J. Weatherhead,
I1I Professor of Management, Weatherhead School
of Management, Case Western Reserve University.
Prior to his departure in 1998, Dr. Cowen had been
associated with Case Western Reserve University in
various capacities since 1976. Dr. Cowen is alsoa
director of American Greetings Corp. (a manufacturer
of greeting cards and related merchandise), Forest
City Enterprises (a real estate developer) and Jo-Ann
Stores (an operator of retail fabric shops).

Elizabeth Cuthberi-Millett has been a private investor for
more than five years.

Michael A, Todman has been President, Whirlpool North
America since June 2007 and a member of the Board of
Directors of Whirlpool Corporation {a manufacturer and
marketer of major home appliances) since January 1,
2006. He served as President, Whirlpool International
from January 2006 to June 2007 and served as Executive
Vice President and President of Whirlpool Europe from
October 2001 to January 2006, From March 2001 to
October 2001, he served as Executive Vice President,
North America of Whirtpool Corporation. From 1993
to 1999, Mr. Todman served in a number of roles at
Whirlpool, including Senior Vice President, Sales and
Marketing, North America; Vice President, Sears Sales
and Marketing; Vice President, Product Management;

Controller of North America; Vice President, Consumer
Services, Whirlpool Furope; General Manager, Northern
FEurope; and Director, Finance, United Kingdom. Prior
to joining Whirtpool, Mr. Todman held a variety of lead-
ership positions at Wang Laboratories, Inc. and Price
Waterhouse and Co.

William D. Marehn has been Chairman of the Board of
the Company since May 2004. He retired in Decem-
ber 1998 as Vice Chairman of the Board of Whirlpool
Corporation (a manufacturer and marketer of major
home appliances}, a post he held since Febtuary 1997.
From 1992 to 1997, Mr. Marohn served as the President
and Chief Operating Officer of Whirlpoo! Corporation.
From January to October 1992, he was President of
Whirlpoo! Europe, B.V. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Marohn
served as Executive Viee President of Whirlpool's North
American Operations, and from 1987 to March 1989
he was President of Whirlpool’s Kenmore Appliance
Group. Prior to retirement, Mr. Marchn had been
associated with Whirlpool since 1964,

Mark D. Ketchum has been President & Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since October 16, 2005, From
1999 to 2004, Mr. Ketchum was President, Global
Baby and Family Care of The Procter & Gamble
Company. Mr. Ketchum joined Procter & Gamble in
1971, and thereafter served in a variety of roles, including
Vice President and General Manager - Tissue/Towel
from 1990 to 1996 and President - North American
Paper Sector from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Ketchum is also
a director of Kraft Foods, Inc. (a global manufacturer
and marketer of packaged foods and beverages).

Steven ). Strobel was Senior Vice President - Treasurer of
Motorola, Inc. (a wireless and broadband communications
company) from June 2007 to March 2008, He served as
Motorola’s Senior Vice President - Corporate Controller
from 2003 to June 2007. From 2000 to 2003, Mr. Strobel
was Vice President ~ Finance and Treasurer for Owens
Corning (a manufacturer and marketer of building
material and composites systems). From 1996 to 1999,
Mr. Strobel served as Owens Corning’s Vice President -
Corporate Controller. From 1986 to 1996, Mr. Strobel
served in a number of roles with Kraft Foods, a former
division of Philip Morris Companies, Ine. (a manufac-
turer and marketer of consumer products). While at
Kraft, he held various financial positions, including Viee
President, Finance, Kraft Grocery Products Division;
Vice President and Controller, Kraft USA Operations;
and Chief Financial Officer, Kraft Foods Canada.

Thomas E. Clarke has been President of New Business
Ventures of Nike, Inc. (a designer, developer and marketer
of footwear, apparel, equipment and accessery products)
since 2001, Dr. Clarke joined Nike, Inc. in 1980. He was
appointed divisional Vice President in charge of market-
ing in 1987, corporate Vice President in 1989, General
Manager in 1990, and served as President and Chief
Operating Officer from 1994 to 2000, Dr. Clarke previcusly
held various positions with Nike, Inc., primarily in research,
design, development and marketing.

Raymond B. Viault retired in January 2005 as Vice
Chairman of General Mills, Inc. {a manufacturer and
marketer of consumer food products), a post he held
since 1996. From 1990 to 1996, Mr. Viault was Presi-
dent of Kraft Jacobs Suchard in Zurich, Switzerland.
Mr. Viault was with Kraft General Foods for a total
of 20 years, serving in a variety of major marketing
and general management positions. Mr. Viault is also
adirector of VF Corp. (an apparel company), Safeway Inc.
(a food and drug retailet, and Cadbury Schweppes ple
(a manufacturer and marketer of foods and beverages).

Cynthia A. Montgomery is the Timken Professor of Business
Administration and Chair of the Strategy Unit at the
Harvard University Graduate School of Business,
where she has served on the faculty since 1989. Prior
thereto, Dr. Montgomery was a Professor at the Kellogg
School of Management at Northwestern University from
1985 to 1989. Dr. Montgomery also serves on the Board
of Directors of Black Rock Mutual Funds, Harvard
Business School Publishing, and McLean Hospital.

Domenico De Sale has been the Chairman of Tom Ford
International since 2005, Prior thereto he was President
and Chief Executive Officer of Gueci Group NV, and
Chairman of the Group’s Management Board, a post he
held from 1995 to 2004. From 1984 to 1994, Mr. De Sule
served as Chief Executive Officer of Gueei America. Prior
thereto, Mr. De Sole was a partner with Patton Boggs
& Blow (a law firm) from 1970 to 1984. Mr. De Sole also
serveson the Board of Directors of Telecom Italia S.p.A.,
GAP, Inc., Ermenegildo Zegna, and is a Member of
the Advisory Board of Harvard Law School.

(Pictured from left to right®: Michael T. Cowhig, Scott S.
Cowen, Elizabeth Cuthbert-Millett, Michael A. Todman,
William D. Marohn, Mark D. Ketchum, Steven J. Strobel,
Thomas £. Clarke, Raymand G, Viault, Cynthia A.
Montgomery, Domenico De Scle
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following is a summary of certain consolidated financial information relating to the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, {in millions,
except per share data). The summary has been derived in part from, and sheuld be read in conjunction with, the Cansolidated Financial Statements of the
Company included elsewhere in this report and the schedules thereto.

2007 2006™ 2005% 2004 2003
STATEMENTS OF INGOME DATA
Net sales $6,407.3 $6,201.0 $5,717.2 $5,707.1 $5,879.8
Cost of products sold 4,150.1 4,131.0 3,959.1 4,050.6 41744
Gross margin 2,251.2 2,070.0 1,788.1 1,656.5 1,705.4
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,430.9 1,347.0 1,117.7 1,050.1 1,005.5
Impairment charges — — 04 2640 285
Restructuring costs® 85.0 66.4 72.6 28.2 158.4
Operating income 140.3 b56.6 5674 314.2 512.0
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest expense, net 104.1 132.0 127.1 119.3 1343
Other expense (income), net 1.3 9.7 {23.1} (3.0) 17.4
Net nonoperating expenses 1114 1417 104.0 116.3 151.7
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 628.9 5149 163 4 147.9 360.3
Income taxes 149.7 a4.2 57.1 929 1101
Income from continuing operations 47192 470.7 106.3 105.0 250.2
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (2.n {85.7} (155.0} (221.1) (296.8)
Net income {loss) $ 4611 $ 385.0 $ 2513 $ (116.1) $ (46.6)
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 216.0 2746 2744 274.4 274.1
Diluted 286.1 275.5 2749 2147 2743
Per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 14 $ 17 $ 148 $ 038 $ 091
Lass from discontinued operations {0.04) {0.31) (0.56) (0.81} (1.08)
Net income {loss) $ 1869 $ 140 $ 092 $ (0.42) $ (017
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 112 $ 17N $ 148 $ 038 $ 091
Loss from discontinued operations (0.04) {0.31) (0.56} (0.80} (1.08)
Net income {Joss) $ 168 $ 140 $ 081 $ (042) $ 017
Dividends $ 034 $ 0384 $ 084 $ 084 $ 084
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Inventories, net $ 9404 $ 8506 $ 7938 $ 8132 $ 7100
Working capital® 87.9 580.3 675.3 1,141.1 978.2
Total assets 6,682.9 6,310.5 6,446.1 6,669.5 7.483.7
Short-term debt, including current partien of long-term debt 4875 2715 166.8 206.9 354
Long-term debt, net of current portion 1,1974 19723 2.429.7 24243 2.868.6
Stockholders’ equity $2,241.3 $1,890.2 $1,643.2 $1,764.2 $2,016.3

(1) Supplemental data regarding 2007, 2006 and 2005 is provided in Item 7, Management's Discussion and Anafysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
(2} The restructuring costs include facility and other exit costs, employee severance and termination benefits, asset impairments and other costs.
{3} Working capital is defined as Current Assets less Current Liabilities.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL SUMMARIES

Summarized quarterly data far the last two years is as follows (in miffions, except per share data} {unaudited):

Catendar Year Ist 2nd 3rd 4th Year
2007
Net sales $1,384.4 $1,693.1 $1,687.3 $1,642.5 $6,407.3
Gross margin 4747 605.6 601.0 5759 2,257.2
Income from continuing operations 65.1 143.2 169.9 101.0 479.2
(Loss} income from discontinued operations (15.8) (1.0} 0.3 4.4 {12.1)
Net income $ 493 $ 142.2 $ 170.2 $ 1054 $ 4671
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.4 $ 052 $ 062 $ 037 $ 1.4
{Loss) income from discontinued operations (0.06} - — 0.02 (0.04)
Net income $ 018 $ 052 $ 062 $ 038 $ 1.69
Dituted:
tncome from continuing operations $ 023 $ 051 $ 061 $ 0.36 $ 11
(Loss} incame from discentinued aperations (0.09) - — 0.02 (0.04)
Net income $ 018 $ 051 $ 061 $ 038 $ 188
2006
Net sales $1,342.6 $1,634.1 $1,586.1 $1638.2 $6,201.0
Gross margin 432.1 563.0 535.2 539.7 2,070.0
Income from continuing operations 130.2 135.5 112.7 92.3 470.7
{Loss) income from discontinued aperations (75.4) (16.00 (4.2) 9.9 (85.7)
Net income $ 548 $ 1195 $ 1085 $ 102.2 $ 385.0
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 047 $ 049 $ 041 $ 03 $ 171
(Loss) income fram discontinued operations (0.27) (0.06} (0.02) 0.04 (0.31}
Net income $ 020 $ 044 $ 039 $ 037 $§ 140
Dituted:
[ncome from continuing operations $ 047 $ 049 $ 041 $ 033 $ 171
(Loss) income from discontinued operations {0.27) (0.06) 0.02) 0.04 {0.31)
Net income $ 021 $ 043 $ 039 $ 037 $ 140
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the Company’s
consalidated results of aperations and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto.

Executive Overview

Newell Rubbermaid is a global marketer of consumer and commercial products that touch the lives of people where they work, live and play. The Cempany's
multi-product offering consists of well known name-brand consumer and commerciai products in four business segments as fallows:

Segment Description of Products

Cleaning, Organization & Décor  Material handling, cleaning, refuse, indoor/outdoor organization, home storage, food storage, drapery hardware,
window treatments

Office Products Ball point/roller ball pens, markers, highlighters, pencils, correction fluids, office products, art sugplies, on-demand
labeling products, card-scanning solutions, on-line postage

Tools & Hardware Hand tools, power tool accessories, manual paint applicators, cabinet, window and convenience hardware, propane
tarches, soldering tools and accessories

Home & Family Premium cookware and related kitchenware, beauty and style accessory products, infant and juvenile products,
including high chairs, car seats, strollers and play yards, and other products within businesses that are individually
immaterial and do not meet aggregation criteria

The Campany's vision is to become a global company of Brands That Matter™and great people, known for best-in-class results. The Campany remains
committed to investing in strategic brands and new product development, strengthening its portfolio of businesses, reducing its supply chain costs and
streamlining non-strategic selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A).

The key tenets of the Company's strategy include building large, consumer-meaningful brands (“Brands That Matter™"), leveraging one Newell
Rubbermaid, achieving a best total cost position and commercializing innovation across the enterprise. The Company's results depend on the ability of its
individual business units to succeed in their respective categories, each of which has some unique consumers, custamers and competitors. The Company’s
strategie initiatives are designed to help enable these business units generate differentiated products, operate within a best-in-class cost structure and
employ superior branding in order to realize premium margins on their products. The business units use the premium margins to fund incremental demand
creation initiatives, driving incremental sales and profits for the Company.

The following section details the Company's performance in each of its transformational initiatives:

Create Consumer-Meaningful Brands

The Companyis continuing to move from its histarical focus on push marketing and excellence in manufacturing and distributing products, to a new focus
on consumer pull marketing and creating competitive advantage through better understanding its consumers, innovating to deliver great perfarmance,
investing in advertising and promaticn to create demand and leveraging its brands in adjacent categories around the world, This effort is creating and
expanding core competencies and processes centered on consumer understanding, innovation and demand creation, to drive sustainable top line growth.
The Company's progress in implementing this brand building and marketing initiative is exhibited by the following:

s The Company's Tools & Hardware segment achieved low single digit sales growth in 2007, due largely to continued strength in its international
[rwin and Lenox businesses. One of the primary drivers of the growth in the Lenox business is its marketing efforts and the expansion of its team
of trained professionals wha work with end users to educate them on the benefits, use, installation, and servicing of its band saws.

*  Inthe Company's Beauty and Style business, Goody has introduced a major marketing campaign to support the introduction of its innovative
Styling Therapy line of brushes that are infused with special substances that help control dandruff, add shine, and protect hair color. Sales of
Styling Therapy products have doubled since the launch of the consumer driven advertising and promotion campaign.

e Inthe Company's Office Products segment, the Dyme labeling technology business’ sales have increased in 2007 due largely to aggressive
television marketing campaigns in Europe. Additionally, the Office Products segment is launching the Sharpie Ulira Fine Retractable Marker in
early 2008. This distinct product, developed based on consumer understanding and demand, allows for precise permanent marking and writing
with an easy one-handed operation.
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Leverage One Newell Rubbermaid
The Company strives to leverage the common business activities and best practices of its business units, and to build one comman culture of shared values,
with a focus on collaboration and teamwark. The Company continuously explores ways to leverage common functionat capabilities, such as Human
Resources, Information Technology, Customer Service, Supply Chain Management and Finance, to improve efficiency and reduce costs. This broad reaching
initiative already includes projects such as the corporate consolidation of the distribution and transportatien function and consolidating Company-wide
purehasing efforts. Additionally, during 2007, the Company streamlined its organizational structure in its move to a consistent GBU structure throughout
the Company. As part of the transition to the new GBU structure, the Company recently created and expanded leadership positions to identify and drive
synergies across business units.

The Company also accelerated the process of creating shared services for the European businesses and is expanding the scope of shared services in
the U.S and Latin America. The transition of services to the Shared Service Center in Europe is approximately 90% complete.

{n October 1, 2007, the Company's Office Products segment successfully went live with the SAP implementation for its North American operations.
This SAP go-live marks the campletion of the first major milestone in a multi-year rollout aimed at migrating multiple legacy systems and users to a common
SAP global information platform. This will enable the Company to integrate and manage its worldwide business and reporting processes more efficiently.

Achieve Best Total Cost

The Company’s objective is ta reduce the cost of marufacturing, sourcing and supplying product on an ongoing basis, and to leverage the Company's size
and scale, in order to achieve a best total cost position. Achieving best cost positions in its categories allpws the Company to increase investment in
strategic brand building initiatives.

Through Project Acceleratien and other initiatives, the Cempany has made significant progress in reducing its supply chain costs and delivering
productivity savings. Project Acceleration includes the closure of approximately one-third of the Company’s 64 manufacturing facilities, optimizing the
Company's geographic manufacturing footprint. Since the inception of Project Acceleration, the Company has announced the clesure of 16 manufacturing
facilities and expects that approximately eight additional facilities will be closed under this program, Project Acceleration is projected to result in cumulative
restructuring costs of approximately $375 milkion to $400 miflion ($315 million to $340 milfien after tax). Approximately 67% of the costs are expected to
be cash. Annualized savings are now projected to exceed $150 million upon conclusion of the preject in 2009. Additienally, the Company has broadened its
supply chain efforts to include the realization of efficiencies in purchasing and distributien and transportation in its move toward legistical excellence. for
example, the Company has consalidated the warehousing and logistics for all product groups in the United Kingdom at a single site near Birmingham,
England and has also opened a naw, 400,000 square foot consolidated Newell Rubbermaid distribution center in Victarville, California.

Nurture 360° Innovation

The Campany has broadened its definition of innovation beyond product invention. The Company defines innovation as the suceessful commercialization of
invention. It is 2 rigorous, consumer centric process that permeates the entire development cycle. It begins with a deep understanding of how consumers
interact with the Company's brands and categories, and all the factors that drive their purchase decisions and in-use experience. That understanding must
then be translated into innovative products that deliver unique features and benefits, at a best-cost position, providing the consumer with great value.
Lastly, innovating how and where to create awareness and trial use, and measuring the effectiveness of advertising and promotion spending, completes
the process. The Company has pockets of excellence using this expanded definition of innovation, and continues to build on this competency in its effort

to create consumer meaningful brands. Since the beginning of 2007, the Company has faunched a number of innovative new products including the
Sharpie® Chisel Tip, Levolor® Roman Shades, Lenox® Diamond™ saw blades, Graco® iMonitor™ and the Rubbermaid® Premier line of premium food storage
containers, Additionally, the Company’s Baby and Parenting Essentials business launched the Grace Sweetpeace-Newborn Soothing Center in early 2008,
which was developed based on comprehensive research, with moms and pediatric professionals, to understand what works best to calm habies.

25




Newell Rubbermaid Inc. 2007 Annual Report

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated items from the Conselidated Statements of Income as reported and as a percentage of net sales
for the year ended December 31, (in milfions, except percentages):

2007 2006 2005

Net sales $6,401.3 100.0% $6,201.0 100.0% $5,717.2 100.0%
Cost of products sold 4,150.1 64.8 41310 66.6 3,959.1 69.2
Gross margin 2,251.2 35.2 2,070.0 334 1,758.1 308
Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) 1,430.9 223 1,347.0 21.7 1,1i7.7 19.5
Impairment charges - — — — 0.4 -
Restructuring costs 86.0 1.3 66.4 11 726 13
Operating income 740.3 11.6 656.6 10.6 567.4 9.9
Noneperating expenses:

Interest expense, net 1041 1.6 132.0 21 127.1 2.2

Other expense (income), net 13 0.1 8.7 0.2 (23.1) (0.4

Net nonoperating expenses 114 1.7 141.7 2.3 104.0 1.8

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 6289 98 5149 8.3 4634 8.1
Income taxes 149.7 23 44.2 0.7 511 1.0
Income from continuing operations 479.2 15 470.7 1.6 406.3 71
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (12.1} {0.2) (85.7) (1.4) {155.0) (2.7)
Net income $ 4671 1.3% $ 385.0 6.2% $ 2513 4.4%

Results of Operations—2007 vs. 2006

et sales for 2007 were $6,407.3 million, representing an increase of $206.3 million, or 3.3%, from $6,201.0 million for 2006. Positive currency translation
contributed approximately 2.0% of the 3.3% improvement. Excluding the effects of currency translation, sales increased 1.3%. The increase was primarily related
to Home & Family sales growth of 6.0% and Cleaning, Organization & Décor sales growth of 4.1%, partially offset by a decrease in Office Products sales.

Gross margin, as a percentage of net sales, for 2007 was 35.2%, or $2,257.2 million, versus 33.4%, or $2,070.0 million, for 2006. Ongoing productivity
initiatives, favorable mix, and savings from Project Acceferation, which contributed approximately $45 million to gross margin, drove the 185 basis paint
improvement year over year, with pricing offsetting raw material inflation.

SG&A expenses for 2007 were 22.3% of net sales, or $1,430.9 million, versus 21.7% of net sales, or $1,347.0 million, for 2006. Approximately
38% of the increase is attributable to foreign currency, with the remainder due to investments in brand huilding, product development and other
corporate initiatives, including SAP and Shared Services. These investments were partially offset by $15 million in savings from Project Acceleration
and other structural overhead reductions.

The Company recerded restructuring costs of $86.0 million and $66.4 million for 2007 and 2006, respectively, The Company expects cumulative
pre-tax restructuring costs of $375 to $400 million, approximately 67% of which are expected to be cash costs, over the life of the initiative, which began
in 2005 and is expected to conclude in 2009. Annualized savings are projected to exceed $150 million upon campletion of the project, with an appreximate
$60 miltion of savings realized in 2007, of which an estimated $45 million in savings is included in the improvement in gross margin. The Company projects
an additional benefit from Project Acceleration of $60 million in 2008 and $30 million in 2009, The 2007 restructuring costs included $27.7 million of
tacility and other exit costs, $36.4 million of employee severance and termination benefits and $21.9 million of exited contractual commitments and other
restructuring costs. Since the inception of Project Acceleration, the Company has annaunced the closure of 16 manufacturing facilities and expects that
approximately eight additiona facilities will be closed under this program. The 2006 restructuring costs included $14.9 mitlion of facility and other exit
costs, $44.7 million of employee severance and termination benefits and $6.8 million of exited contractual cemmitments and other restructuring costs.
See Foatnate 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Operating income for 2007 was $740.3 million, or 11.6% of net sales, versus $656.6 million, or 10.6% of net sales, in 2006. This increase was driven
by sales and gross margin expansion, partially offset by the increased investment in brand building and product development initiatives, expansion of
shared services and implementation of SAP.

Net nonoperating expenses for 2007 were 1.7% of net sales, or $111.4 miliion, versus 2.3% of net sales, or $141.7 millien, for 2006. The decrease
in net nonoperating expenses was mainly attributable to 4 decrease in interest expense, reflecting a reduction in average debt outstanding year over year
and slightly lower average borrowing rates. See Footnote 17 of the Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.
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The effective tax rate was 23.8% for 2007 versus 8.6% for 2006. The change in the effective tax rate is primarily related to the $41.3 million of
income tax benefits recorded in 2007 compared to $102.8 million income tax benefits recorded in 2006. The income tax benefits in 2007 and 2006 resulted
from the favorable resolution of certain tax positiens, the expiration of the statute of limitations on certain deductions, and the reorganization of certain
legal entities in Europe. See Footnote 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

The loss from discontinued operations for 2007 was $12.1 million, compared to $85.7 million for 2006. The loss on the disposal of discontinued
operations for 2007 was $11.9 million, net of tax, compared to a gain of $0.7 million, net of tax, for 2006. The 2007 loss related primarily te the dispesal of
the remaining operations of the Home Décor Europe business. The 2006 gain related primarily to the disposal of the Little Tikes business, partially offset
by the loss recognized on the disposal of portions of the Home Décor Europe business. The loss from operations of discontinued aperations for 2007 was
$0.2 million, net of tax, compared to $86.4 million, net of tax, for 2006. The 2007 loss related only ta the results of the remaining operations of the Home
Décor Europe business, while the 2006 loss included a $50.9 million impairment charge to write off goodwill of the Home Décor Europe business. See
Footnote 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Results of Operations—2006 vs. 2005

Net sales for 2006 were $6,201.0 miltion, representing an increase of $483.8 million, or 8.5%, from $5,717.2 million for 2005. Excluding sales related
to the Dymo acquisition, sales were up approximately $268 millian, or 4.7%, driven by core sales growth of approximately 2.6%. The impact of positive
currency translation and favorable pricing contributed approximately two points of additiona! improvement,

Gross margin, as a percentage of net sales, for 2006 was 33.4%, or $2,070.0 million, versus 30.8%, or $1,758.1 millian, for 2005. The 260 basis point
improvement in gross margin was driven by productivity, faverable pricing, and faverable mix, which more than offset the impact of raw material inflation.

$G&A expenses for 2006 were 21.7% of net sales, or $1,347.0 million, versus 19.5%, or $1,117.7 million, for 2005. Approximately 40% of the
increase is related to the impact of acquisitions, 40% represented increased investment in strategic brand building, and the remainder resulted from the
impact of foreign currency and stock option accounting and the pension curtailment benefit recognized in 2005 that did net repeat in 2006.

The Company recorded restructuring costs of $66.4 million and $72.6 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 2006 restructuring costs included
$14.9 miltion of facility and other exit costs, $44.7 million of employee severance and termination benefits and $6.8 million of exited contractual
commitments and other restructuring costs. The 2005 restructuring costs included $51.3 million in nen-cash facility restructuring costs relating to Project
Acceleration and $21.3 million relating to restructuring actions approved prior to the commencement of Project Acceleration. The $21.3 million of pre-Project
Acceleration costs included $7.9 million of facility and other exit costs, $11.1 millien of employee severance and termination benefits and $2.3 million of exited
contractual commitments and other restructuring costs. See Footnote 4 of the Nates to Cansolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Operating income for 2006 was $656.6 million, or 10.6% of net sales, versus $567.4 miflion, or 9.9% of net sales, in 2005. The improvement
in pperating margins is the result of ingreased sales and gross margin expansion partially offset by increased investment in strategic brand building.

Net nonoperating expenses for 2006 were 2.3% of net sales, or $141.7 million, versus 1.8% of net sales, or $104.0 million, for 2005. The increase
in net nonoperating expenses is mainly attributable to gains recognized in 2005 an the sale of property, plant and equipment and the liquidation of a
foreign subsidiary that did not repeat in 2006, along with an increase in net interest expense, $132.0 million for 2006 compared to $127.1 million for 2005.
The increase in net interest expense was primarily due to higher borrowing rates and higher average debt balances. See Feotnote 17 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial $tatements for further information.

The effective tax rate was 8.6% for 2006 versus 12.3% for 2605, The change in the effective tax rate is primarily reated to $102.8 million income tax
benefits recorded in 2006 compared to income tax benefits of $73.9 million recorded in 2005, as a result of favorable resolution of certain tax positions and
the expiration of the statute of limitations on other deductions. See Footnote 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements for further information.

The loss from discontinued operations for 2006 was $85.7 million, compared to $155.0 million for 2005. The (gain) loss on the dispasal of discontinued
operations for 2006 was ($0.7) million, net of tax, compared to $36.8 million, net of tax, for 2005. The 2006 gain was primarily related to the disposal of the
Little Tikes business, which was partially offset by the loss recognized on disposal of portions of the Home Décor Europe business. The 2005 loss related
primarily to the disposal of the Curver and the European Cockware businesses. The loss from operations of discontinued operations for 2006 was $86.4 million,
net of tax, compared to $58.2 million, net of tax, for 2005. See Footnote 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements for further information.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

2007 vs. 2006 Business Segment Operating Results
Net sales by segment were as follows for the year ended December 31, (in milfions, except percentages):

2007 2006 % Change
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $2.096.4 $1,995.7 5.0%
Office Products 2,042.3 2,031.6 0.5
Tools & Hardware 1,288.7 1,262.2 2.1
Home & Family 9799 911.5 7.5
Total Net Sales $6,407.3 $6,201.0 1.3%

Operating income by segment was as follows for the year ended December 31, {in mifiions, except percentages):

2007 2006 % Change
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $273.3 $209.1 30.7%
Office Products KINR ] 287.0 108
Tools & Hardware 181.5 185.0 (L9
Home & Family 135.6 117.9 15.0
Corporate (82.0} (76.0) {7.9)
Restructuring costs {86.0} (66.4}
Total Operating Income $740.3 $656.6 12.7%

Cleaning, Organization & Décor

Net sales for 2007 were $2,096.4 miflion, an increase of $100.7 million, or 5.0%, from $1,995.7 millien in 2006, driven by double digit sales growth in

Rubbermaid Commercial Products, resulting from new product launches during the year, mid single digit growth in Rubbermaid Home Products due to

growth in sales of home erganization and insulated products, and low single digit growth in the Rubbermaid Food and Levolor branded businesses.
Operating income for 2007 was $273.3 million, or 13.0% of sales, an increase of $64.2 million, or 30.7%, from $209.1 million in 2006. The

improvement in operating income was the result of sales growth driven by strategic SG&A investments and gross margin expansion, resulting from

productivity gains and favorable mix.

Office Products
Net sales for 2007 were $2,042.3 million, an increase of $10.7 million, or 0.5% from $2,031.6 million in 2006, Growth in the Office Technology business,
driven by increased sales in the Dymo business and the acquisition of Endicia, along with favorable foreign currency, was offset by ovesall softness in the
U.S. resulting from weaker foot traffic in the North American office retailers and inventory corrections taken within that same channel.

Operating income for 2007 was $317.9 million, or 15.6% of sales, an increase of $30.9 million, or 10.8%, from $287.0 million in 2006. This increase
primarily resulted from gross margin expansion, resulting from favorable mix and pricing initiatives, partially offset by increased investment in brand
building activities.

Tools & Hardware
Net salas for 2007 were $1,288.7 million, an increase of $26.5 million, or 2.1%, from $1,262.2 milfion in 2006. The successful commercialization of
certain products, particularly bandsaws, and favorable foreign currency drove sales growth in Europe and Latin America, which more than offset continued
softness in the domestic too! and hardware businesses affected primarily by the U.S. residential construction market. The Company continues to experience
solid growth in the Irwin and Lenox branded products which combined yielded mid single digit growth for the year.

Operating income for 2007 was $181.5 miflion, or 14.1% of sales, a decrease of $3.5 million, or 1.9%, from $185.0 million in 2006, Tap line growth
and productivity initiatives were more than offset by investments in strategic brand building.

Home & Family
Net sales for 2007 were $979.9 million, an increase of $68.4 million, or 7.5%, from $911.5 million in 2006. Broad based success in all three business units
was fueled by new product launches and better sell-through resulting from demand creation activities.

QOperating income for 2007 was $135.6 million, or 13.8% of sales, an increase of $17.7 million, or 15.0%, from $117.9 miltion in 2006. The increase
was primarily driven by top line sales growth supported by increased SG&A investments.
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2006 vs, 2005 Business Segment Operating Results
Net sales by segment were as fallows for the year ended December 31, (in miflions, except percentages):

2006 2005 % Change
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $1,995.7 $1,921.0 3.9%
Office Products 2,031.6 1,713.3 18.6
Tools & Hardware 1,262.2 1,260.3 0.2
Home & Family 911.% 8226 10.8
Total Net Sales $6,201.0 $5.717.2 8.5%

Operating income by segment was as follows for the year ended December 31, (in miflions, except percentages):

2006 2005 % Change
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $209.1 $145.8 43.4%
Office Products 281.0 266.0 19
Taols & Hardware 185.0 171.1 81
Home & Family 1178 103.5 13.9
Corporate (76.0) {46.0) {65.2)
Impairment charge - 0.4
Restructuring costs (66.4) {72.6)
Total Operating Income $656.6 $567.4 15.7%

Cleaning, Organization & Décor
Net sales for 2006 were $1,995.7 million, an increase of $74.7 million, or 3.9%, from $1,921.0 million in 2005, driven by mid single-digit growth in
Rubbermaid Commercial Products and Rubbermaid Home Products. New product innovation, a strang back to campus season, a successful year in
insulated products and strong sales in the size in store and custom blind products drove the sales improvement aver 2005, Partially offsetting this increase
were low margin product line exits, specifically related to basic drapery hardware.

Operating income for 2006 was $209.1 million, an increase of $63.3 million, or 43.4%, from $145.8 million in 2005. The increase in operating income
was driven by the sales volume increases described above coupled with productivity initiatives and pricing actions put in place to offset raw material inflation.

Office Products
Net sales for 2006 were $2,031.6 miltion, an increase of $318.3 million, or 18.6% from $1,713.3 millian in 2005. Excluding sales related to the Dymo
acquisition, sales increased approximately 6%, led by strong perfarmance in the Everyday Writing and Marker businesses.

QOperating income for 2006 was $287.0 million, an increase of $21.0 million, or 7.9%, from $266.0 million in 2005. Additional income from the Dyme
acquisition and the sales volume increase described above were partially offset by strategic brand building spending, restructuring related inefficiencies
and acquisition retated start-up costs.

Tools & Hardware
et sales for 2006 were $1,262.2 million, an increase of $1.9 million, or 0.2%, from $1,260.3 million in 2005, as mid single-digit growth in the Irwin and
Lenox branded tools businesses was offset by the decline in the consumer electronic tools business, Sales of other product lines increased approximately
3% in the segment, despite the chatlenging housing and retail enviranment.

Operating income for 2006 was $185.0 million, an increase of $13.9 million, ar 8.1%, from $171.1 million in 2005. Productivity initiatives were
partially offset by strategic brand building investment and raw material inflation, particularly in aluminum, zing and brass.

Home & Family
Net sales for 2006 were $911.5 million, an increase of $88.9 million, or 10.8%, fram $822.6 million in 2005. Broad based success in all three business
units was fueled by sales of new products and consumer demand driven by targeted strategic SG&A investment.

Operating income for 2006 was $117.9 million, an increase of $14.4 million, or 13.9%, from $103.5 million in 2005, driven by an increase in sales
and productivity, partially offset by increased SG&A investment.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash and cash equivalents increased (decreased) as follows for the year ended December 31, (in millipns):

2007 2006 2005
Cash provided by operating activities $ 655.3 $ 6434 $ 6416
Cash used in investing activities (265.6) (1.9 {766.7}
Cash used in financing activities (266.8) {550.1) {257.2)
Exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents 5.3 4.1 (7.8)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 1282 $ 855 $(390.1)

Sources
Histarically, the Company's primary sources of liquidity and capital resources have included cash provided by operations, proceeds from divestitures and
use of available borrewing facilities.

Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $655.3 million compared to $643.4 million for the comparable
period of 2006. The increase in cash provided by eperating activities is primarily a result of increased net income, offset by increased investments in
working capital, including cash restructuring costs.

In 2007, the Company received proceeds frem the issuance of debt of $420.8 million compared to $177.0 mitlien in 2006. Praceeds in 2007 reflect the
issuance of commercial paper to fund the acquisition of PSI Systems, Inc. {*Endicia”), a provider of Endicia Internet postage, and to pay off a $250.0 million,
6.0% fixed rate medium-term note that matured.

On November 14, 2005, the Company entered into a $750.0 million five-year syndicated revolving credit facility (the “Revolver"). On an annual
basis, the Company may request an extension of the Revolver (subject to lender approval) for additional one-year periods. The Company elected to extend
the Revolver for additional one-year periods in both October 2006 and October 2007, and, as a result, the Revolver will now expire in November 2012, All but
one lender approved the 2006 and 2007 extensians. Accordingly, the Company has a $750.0 million facility threugh November 2010, and a $725.0 million
facility fram November 2010 to November 2012, At December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no borrowings under the Revolver.

In liew of borrowings under the Revaiver, the Company may issue up ta $750.0 million of commercial paper through 2010 and $725.0 million thereafter
threugh 2012. The Revelver provides the committed backup liquidity required to issue commercial paper. Accordingly, commercial paper may only be issued
up to the amount available for borrowing under the Revolver. The Revolver also provides for the issuance of up to $100.0 million of standby letters of credit
so long as there is a sufficient amount available for borrawing under the Revolver. At December 31, 2007, there was $197.0 miltion of commercial paper
outstanding, classified as current fong-term debt, and no standby letters of credit issued under the Revolver. At December 31, 2006, there was no
commerciat paper outstanding and there were ne standby letters of credit issued under the Revolver.

The Revolver permits the Company to borrow funds on a variety of interest rate terms and requires, among other things, that the Company maintain
certain Interest Coverage and Total Indebtedness to Total Capital Ratio, as defined in the agreement. The Revolver also limits Subsidiary Indebtedness, as
defined in the agreement. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company was in compliance with the terms of the agreement governing the Revolver.

Under a 2001 receivables facility with a financial institution, the Company created a financing entity that is consolidated in the Company’s financial
statements. Under this facility, the Company regularly enters into transactions with the financing entity to sell an undivided interest in substantially all of
the Company's U.S. trade receivables to the financing entity. In 2001, the financing entity issued $450.0 million in preferred debt securities to the financial
institution. Certain levels of accounts receivable write-offs and other events would permit the financial institution to terminate the receivables facility.

On September 18, 2006, in accordance with the terms of the receivables facility, the financing entity caused the preferred debt securities to be exchanged
for cash of $2.2 million, a two year floating rate note in an aggregate principal amount of $448.0 million and a cash premium of $5.2 million. Because this
debt matures in September 2008, the entire amount is considered to be short-term at December 31, 2007. At any time prior to maturity of the note, the
holder may elect te convert it into new preferred debt securities of the financing entity with a par value equal to the outstanding principal amount of the
note. The note must be repaid and any preferred debt securities into which the note is converted must be retired or redeemed before the Company can have
access to the financing entity's receivables. As of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the aggregate amount of outstanding receivables sold under
this facility was $643.3 million and $696.7 million, respectively. The receivables and the preferred debt securities or note, as applicable, are recorded in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The Company believes that available cash, cash flows generated from future operations, access to debt markets and availability under its revalving
credit facitity, including issuing commercial paper, will be adequate to fund the Company’s short-term and long-term financing needs.
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Uses
Historically, the Company's primary uses of liquidity and capital resources have included acquisitions, dividend payments, capital expenditures and
payments on debt.

tn 2007, the Company made payments on notes payable, commercial paper and ong-term debt of $478.3 million compared to $511.0 milkion in 2006.
tn 2007, the Company issued commercial paper to fund the acquisition of Endicia and to retire a $250.0 million, 6.0% fixed rate medium-term note that
matured. [n 2006, the Company used available cash to pay off commercial paper and retire a $150.0 million, 6.6% fixed rate medium-term note that
matured. See Footnote 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional infarmation on these transactions.

Aggregate dividends paid were $234.7 million and $232.8 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively. In 2008, the Company expects to make similar
dividend payments.

Capital expenditures were $157.3 million and $138.3 million in 2007 and 2008, respectively. The increase in capital expenditures was driven by spending
related to the Company’s SAP initiative. Capital expenditures, including SAP, for 2008 are expected to be in the range of $160 million to $180 million.

Cash used for acquisitions was $106.0 million in 2007, compared to $60.6 million in 2006. a 2007, the Company acquired Endicia for $51.2 millien.
In 2006, the Company did not invest in significant acquisitions. See Footnote 2 of the Notes to Consolidated financial Statements for additional information.

Cash used for restructuring activities was $53.1 million and $26.1 millien in 2007 and 2006, respectively, These payments relate primarily to
employee termination benefits. [n 2008, the Company expects to use approximately $100 million of cash on restructuring activities related to Project
Acceleration, See Footnote 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

In 2007, the Company used net cash of $2.3 mitlion for the disposals of businesses and assets. The amount included payments for transaction fees
relating to the divestiture of the Home Décor Europe and Little Tikes businesses, partially offset by proceeds received from the sale of facilities. The
Company generated cash proceeds from the disposal of noncurrent assets and sale of businesses of $187.0 millian in 2006 relating primarily to the sale
of the European Cookware and Little Tikes businesses, as well as the largest portion of its Home Décor Europe business.

Liquidity Metrics !

Working capital at December 31, 2007 was $87.9 million compared to $580.3 million at December 31, 2006. The current ratio at December 31, 2007 was
1.03:1 compared to 1.31:1 at December 31, 2006, The decrease in working capital is due to an increase of approximately $700 million in current portion of
long-term debt. See Footnote 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Total debt to total capitalization {tota! debt is net of cash and cash equivalents, and total capitalization includes total debt and stockholders' equity)
was .45:1 at December 31, 2007 and .52:1 at December 31, 2006,

The Company helieves that cash provided from operations and available borrowing facilities will continue to provide adequate support for the cash
needs of existing businesses on a shart-term basis; however, certain events, such as significant acquisitions, could require additional external financing
on a long-term basis.

RESOLUTION OF INCOME TAX CONTINGENCIES

In 2007 and 2006, the Company recorded $41.3 millien and $102.8 million, respectively, in income tax benefits as a result of favorable resolution of certain
tax matters with the IRS, the expiration of the statute of limitations on certain tax matters and the reorganization of certain legal entities in Eurape. These
benefits are reflected in the Company’s 2007 and 2008 Consalidated Statements of Income.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, COMMITMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has various contractual obligations that are recorded as liabilities in its consolidated financial statements. Certain ather items, such as
purchase commitments and other executory contracts, are ngt recognized as liabilities in the Company's consolidated financial statements but are required
to be disclosed. Examples of items not recognized as liabilities in the Company's consolidated financial statements are commitments to purchase raw
materials or inventory that has not yet been received as of December 31, 2007 and future minimum |ease payments far the use of property and equipment
under operating lease agreements.
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The following table summarizes the effect that lease and other material contractual obligations listed below are expected to have on the Company's
cash flow in the indicated period. In addition, the table reflects the timing of principal and interest payments on borrowings outstanding as of December 31,
2007. Additional details regarding these obligations are provided in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (in milfions):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 3-5 Mare than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Debt® $2.169.6 $ 972.2 $505.1 $253.2 $439.1
Interest on debt® 635.1 112.2 106.8 717 3444
Operating lease obligations™ 363.1 81.7 111 70.8 995
Purchase obligations™ 306.3 2758 30.5 — —
Total contractual obligations® $3.474.1 $1.441.9 $753.5 $395.7 $883.0

{1

Amounts represent contractual obligations based on the earliest date that the obligation may become due, excluding interest, based on borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2007.

For further information relating to these abligations, see Footnotes 9 and 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Amounts represent estimated interest expense on borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2007 based an the earliest date that the obligation may become due. interest an floating debt
was estimated using the index rate in effect as of Necember 31, 2007. For further informaticn, see Footnotes 9 and 10 of the Notes to Canselidated Financial Statements.

Amounts represent contractual minimum lease obligations on operating leases as of December 31, 2007. For further information relating to this abligation, see Footnote 12 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Primarity consists of purchase commitments entered into 25 of December 31, 2007 for finished goods, raw materials, compenents and services and joint venture interests pursuant te legally
enforceable and binding obligations, which include all significant terms, The Company is obligated to purchase the minority interest of a majarity owned subsidiary in 2009. The estimated
purchase price of that commitment is included in the purchase obligations amount shown in the table above.

Total does not inctude contractual obligations reperied on the December 31, 2007 balance sheet as current liabilities, except for current portion of long-term debt.

(3

(4

(&

The Company alse has liabilities for uncertain tax liabilities and unrecognized tax benefits, As a large taxpayer, the Company is under centinual audit
by the Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities on several apen tax positions, and it is possible that the amount of the liability for uncertain tax
liabilities and unrecognized tax benefits could change in the coming year. While it is possible that one or more of these examinations may be resolved in the
next year, the Company is not able to reasonably estimate the timing or the amount by which the liability will increase or decrease over time; therefore, the
$164.4 million in unrecagnized tax benefits at December 31, 2007 is exclsded from the preceding table. See Footnote 16 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information.

Additionatly, the Company has obligations with respect to its pension and postretirement medical benefit plans. See Footnote 13 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $87.6 million in standby letters of credit primarily related to the Company’s seH-insurance programs,
including workers' compensation, product liability and medical. See Footnote 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company did not have any signiticant off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in ltem 303{(a)(4}(ii) of SEC
Regulation S-K.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's accounting policies are more fully described in Footnote 1 of the Notes te Consalidated Financial Statements. As disclosed in that footnote,
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
about future events that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying footnotes. Future events and their effects cannot be
determined with absolute certainty. Therefore, the determination of estimates requires the exercise of judgment. Actual results inevitably will differ from
those estimates, and such differences may be material to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The fallowing sections describe the Company's critical
accounting policies.

Sales Recognition
Sales of merchandise and freight bifled to customers are recognized when title passes and all substantial risks of ownership change, which generally occurs
gither upon shipment or upon delivery based upon contractual terms. Sales are net of provisions for cash discounts, returas, customer discounts (such as

volume or trade discounts), coaperative advertising and other sales related discounts.
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Recovery of Accounts Receivable

The Gompany evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivabte based on a combination of factors. When aware of a specific customer's inability to meet
its financial obligations, such as in the case of bankruptcey filings or deterioration in the customer's operating results or financial position, the Company
records a specific reserve for bad debt to reduce the related receivable to the amount the Company reasonably believes is collectible. The Company also
records reserves for bad debt for all other customers based on a variety of factors, including the length of time the receivables are past due and historical
collection experience. Accounts are reviewed for potential write-off on a case by case basis. Accounts deemed uncollectible are written off, net of expected
recoveries. If circumstances related to specific customers change, the Company’s estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted.
As of December 31, 2007, the Company had allowances for doubtful accounts of $26.1 million on $1,192.5 million of accounts receivable.

Inventory Reserves

The Company reduces its inventory value for estimated obsolete and slow moving inventory in an amount equal to the difference between the cost of
inventory and the net realizable value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable
than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets
The Company conducts its annual test for impairment of goodwilt and indefinite-lived intangible assets in the third quarter because it coincides with its
annual strategic planning process.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment annually at the eperating segment level (herein referred to as the reperting unit). The Company
also tests for impairment if events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is below its carrying
amount. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit is greater than the fair value, impairment may be present. The Company assesses the fair value of its
reporting units for its goodwill based on discounted cash flow models, eamings multiples or an actual sales offer received from a prospective buyer, if
available. The use of a discounted cash flow model involves several assumptions, and changes in our assumptions could materially impact our fair vatue
estimates. Assumptions critical to the Company's fair value estimates under the discounted cash flow model include the discount rate, projected average
revenue growth, projected long-term growth rates in the determination of terminal values, and product cests. A one percentage paint increase in the
discount rate used to determine the fair values of our reporting units, which were not deemed to be impaired based on the testing of goodwill in the third
quarter as described above, would not cause the carrying value of any reporting unit to exceed its fair value.

The Company measures the amount of any goadwill impairment based upon the estimated fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities of the
reporting unit, including any unrecagnized intangible assets, and estimates the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment charge is recognized to the
extent the recorded goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill.

The Company also evaluates indefinite-lived intangible assets (primarily trademarks and trade names) for impairment annuatly. The Company also tests
forimpairment if events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is below its carrying
amgount. Assumptions critical to the Company’s evaluation of indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment include: the discount rate, royalty rates used in
its evaluation of trade names, projected average revenue growth, and projected long-term growth rates in the determination of terminal values. An impairment
charge is recorded if the carrying amount of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds the estimated fair value on the measurement date.

No impairment charges were recorded by the Company as a result of the annual impairment testing performed in the third quarter of 2007 and 2006.

The Company cannot predict the accurrence of events that might adversely affect the reported value of goodwill and other intangible assets. Such
events may include, but are not limited to, strategic decisions made in response to ecenomic and competitive conditions, the impact of the econamic
environment on the Company’s customer base, or a material negative change in its relationships with significant customers.

CGapitalized Software Costs
The Company capitalizes costs associated with internal-use software during the application development stage after both the preliminary project stage
has been completed and the Company’s management has autherized and committed to funding for further project development. Capitalized internal-use
software eosts include: (i) external direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining the software; (i) payroll and payroli-related
costs for employees who are directly associated with and who devote time directly to the project; and (iii) interest costs incurred while developing the
software, Capitalization of these costs ceases no later than the paint at which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended purpose,
The Company expenses as incurred research and development, general and administrative and indirect costs associated with internal-use software.
In addition, the Company expenses as incurred training, maintenance and other internal-use software casts incurred during the post-implementation
stage. Costs associated with upgrades and enhancements of internal-use software are only capitalized if such modifications result in additional
functionality of the software. Capitalized software costs were $131.4 million and $86.3 million at December 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.
Capitalized interest costs included in capitalized software were not material as of December 31, 2007 or 2006,

The Company amortizes internal-use software costs using the straight-line methed over the estimated useful life of the software. Capitalized
software costs are evaluated annually for indicators of impairment including but not limited to a significant change in available technology or the manner in
which the software is being used. Impaired items are written down to their estimated fair values at the date of evaluation.
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Other Long-Lived Assets

The Company contineously evaluates if impairment indicators related to its property, plant and equipment and other long-lived assets are present. These
impairment indicators may include a significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset or asset group, a significant adverse change in the extent
or manner in which a long-lived asset or asset group is being used or in its physical condition, or a current-peried operating or cash flow loss combined with
a history of operating or cash fiow losses or a forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived asset or asset group. If
impairment indicators are present, the Company estimates the future cash flows for the asset or group of assets. The sum of the undiscaunted future cash
flows attributable to the asset or group of assets is compared to their carrying amount. The cash flows are estimated utilizing various assumptions regarding
future revenue and expenses, working capital, and proceeds from asset dispasals on a basis consistent with the Company’s strategic plan. If the carrying
amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows, the Company discounts the future cash flows using a discount rate required for a similar
investment of like risk and records an impairment charge as the difference between the fair value and the carrying value of the asset group. Generally, the
Company performs its testing of the asset group at the product-line level, as this is the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are available.

Product Liability Reserves

The Company has a self-insurance program for product liability that inctudes reserves for self-retained losses and certain excess and aggregate risk
transfer insurance. The Company uses historical loss experience combined with actuarial evaluation methods, review of significant individual files and
the application of risk transfer programs in determining required product fiability reserves. The Company's actuarial evaluation methods take into account
claims incurred but not reported when determining the Company’s product liability reserve. The Company has product liability reserves of $34.4 million
as of December 31, 2007. While the Company believes that it has adequately reserved for these ctaims, the ultimate outcome of these matters may exceed
the amounts recorded by the Company, and such additional losses may be material to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Legal and Environmental Reserves

The Company is subject ta losses resulting from extensive and evolving federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations, as well as contract and other
disputes. The Company evaluates the potential legal and environmental losses relating to each specific case and determines the probable loss based on
historical experience and estimates of cash flows for certain environmental matters. The estimated losses take into account anticipated costs associated
with investigative and remediation efforts where an assessment has indicated that a probable liability has been incurred and the cost can be reasonably
estimated. No insurance recovery is taken into account in determining the Company’s cost estimates or reserve, nor do the Company's cost estimates or
reserve reflect any discounting for present value purposes, except with respect to long-term operations and maintenance Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability {"CERCLA") matters which are estimated at present value. The Company’s estimate of environmental response costs
associated with these matters as of December 31, 2007 ranged between $14.5 million and $33.9 million. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had a
reserve of $18.8 million for such environmental response costs in the aggregate, which is included in other accrued fiabilities and other noncurrent
liahilities in the Censolidated Balance Sheets.

Income Taxes

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting fer Income Taxes”, the Company accounts for deferred income taxes
using the asset and liability approach. Under this approach, deferred income taxes are recognized based on the tax effects of temporary differences
between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities, as measured by current enacted ta rates. Valuation aflowances are recorded to
reduce the deferred tax assets to an amount that will more likely than not be realized. No provision is made for the L., income taxes on the undistributed
earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries as substantially all such earnings are permanently reinvested.

The Company’s income tax provisions are based on caiculations and assumptions that are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and
other tax authorities. Although the Company believes that the positions taken on previously filed tax returns are reasenable, it has established tax and
interest reserves in recognition that various taxing authorities may challenge the positions taken, which cauld result in additional Fabilities for taxes and
interest. The Company regularly reviews its deferred tax assets for recaverability considering histerical profitability, projected future taxable income, the
expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences and tax ptanning strategies.

The Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB") Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncestainty in Income
Taxes” (“FIN 48"}, on tanuary 1, 2007. FIN 48 requires application of a “more likely than not” threshold to the recognition and derecognition of tax pasitions. The
Company's angoing assessments of the more-likely-than-not outcomes of tax authority examinations and related tax positions require significant judgment
and can increase or decrease the Company’s effective tax rate, as well as impact operating results. The adoption of FIN 48 did not result in an adjustment
to beginning retained earnings; however it did result in the reclassification of certain income tax assets and liabilities from current to long-term in the
Company's Consolidated Balance Sheat. See Footnote 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.
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Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits

Pension and other postretirement benefit costs and liabilities are dependent on assumptions used in calcufating such amounts. The primary assumptions
include factors such as discount rates, heaith care cost trend rates, expected return on plan assets, mortality rates and rate of compensation increase,
discussed below:

 Discount rafes; The Company generally estimates the discount rate for its pension and other postretivement benefit obligations using an iterative
process based on a hypothetical investment in a portfolio of high-quality bonds that approximate the estimated cash flows of the pension and
other postretirement benefit obligations. The Company believes this approach permits a matching of future cash autflows related to benefit
payments with future cash inflows associated with bond coupons and maturities.

e Health care cost frend rate: The Company's health-care cost trend rate is based on historical retiree cost data, near term health care outlook,
and industry benchmarks and surveys.

o Fxpected retum on plan assets: The Company's expected return on plan assets is derived from reviews of asset allocation strategies and
anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset classes. The Company's analysis gives appropriate consideration to recent plan
performance and historical returns; however, the assumptions are primarily based on long-term, praspective rates of return,

& Mortality rates: Mortality rates are based on actval and projected plan experience.

» Rate of compensation increase: The rate of compensation increase reflects the Company's long-term actual experience and its outlook,
including consideration of expected rates of inflation.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over
future periods, and therefare, generally affect recognized expense and the recorded obligation in future periods. While management believes that the
assumptions used are appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the Company's pension and other postretirement

plan obligations and future expense. See Footnote 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the assumptions used.

The foflowing tables summarize the Company’s pension and other postretirement plan assets and obligations included in the Consolidated Bafance Sheet
as of December 31, 2007 (n millions):

U.s. International
Pension plan assets and obligations, net:
Prepaid benefit cost s — $ 19
Accrued current benefit cost (6.7 4.2)
Accrued noncurrent benefit cost {98.2) (113.2)
Net liability recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet ${104.9) $(115.5)
us.
Other postretirement henefit obligations:
Accrued current benefit cost $(11.6)
Accrued noncurrent benefit cost (142.9)
Liability recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet $(160.5)

The following table summarizes the net pre-tax cost (benefit) associated with pensions and other postretirement benefit obligations in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, {in millions):

2007 2006 2005
Net pension cost (benefit) $14.4 $15.7 $(7.8)
Net postretirement benefit costs 10.1 10.1 16.3
Total $24.5 $25.8 $85

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 14] (Revised 2007}, “Business Combinations™ (“SFAS 141(R}").
SFAS 141(R) significantly changes the accounting for business combination transactions by requiring an acquiring entity to recagnize all the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition-date fair valuve. Additionally, SFAS 141(R} modifies the accounting treatment for certain
specified items related to business combinations and requires a substantial number of new disclosures. SFAS 141(R) is effective for business combinations
with an acquisition date in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and earlier adoptien is prohibited. The Company expects to prospectively
adopt SFAS 141(R} on January 1, 2009.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements —
An Amendment of ARB No. 517 ("SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by
parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a parent’s
ownership interest and the valuation of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS 160 also establishes
reporting requirements that require sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the
noncontrolting owners. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and earlier adoption is prohibited. SFAS 160 is
effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. The Company is still in the process of evaluating the impact SFAS 160 will have on the Company's
consolidated financial statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements™ (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles, and requires expanded disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and states that
a fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. SFAS 157
applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting
pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. In February
2008, the FASB issued Staff Positions 157-1 and 157-2 which remove certain [2asing transactions from the scope of SFAS 157 and partizlly defer the effective
date of SFAS 157 for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and liahilities. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company prospectively adopted the effective provisions of SFAS 157 on January 1, 2008. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's conselidated financial statements.

INTERNATIDNAL DPERATIONS

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s nen-U.S. businesses accounted for approximately 28%, 26% and 24% of net sales,
respectively (see Footnote 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Changes in both U.S. and non-U.S. net sales are shown below for the year
ended December 31, (/n millions, except percentages):

2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005
2007 2006 2005 % Change % Change
us. $4,624.3 $4,603.4 $4,338.5 0.5% 6.1%
Non-U.S 1,783.0 1,597.6 1,378.7 116 15.9
$6,407.3 $6,201.0 $5.717.2 3.3% 8.5%

Foreign operations, especially in Europe, but also in Asia, Central and South America and Canada, are important to the Company’s business. The Company
is expanding from a U.S.-centric business model to one that includes international growth as an increasing focus. In addition, as the Company increasingly
sources products in low-cost countries, particularly in the Far East, it is exposed to additional risks and uncertainties, nationalization, exchange controls,
interest rates, limitations on foreign investment in local business and other political, economic and regulatory risks and difficulties. The Company also faces
risks due to the transportation and logistical complexities inherent in increased reliance on foreign sourcing.

FORWARD-LOBKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements in this Report are made in refiance upon the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such
forward-looking statements may relate to, but are not limited to, information or assumptions about the effects of Project Acceleration, sales (including pricing),
income/{loss}, earnings per share, operating income or gross margin improvements, return an equity, return on invested capital, capital expenditures, working
capital, cash flow, dividends, capital structure, debt to capitalization ratios, interest rates, internal growth rates, restructuring, impairment and other charges,
potential losses on divestitures, impact of changes in accounting standards, pending legal proceedings and claims (including environmental matters), future
economic perfermance, costs and cost savings (including raw material inflation, productivity and streamlining), synergies, management's plans, goals and
abjectives for future operations, performance and growth or the assumptions relating to any of the forward-looking statements. These statements generally are
accompanied by words such as “intend,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” "project,” “target,” “plan,” “expect,” “will,” “should,” “would” or similar statements.
The Company cautions that forward-looking statements ara not guarantees bacause there are inherent difficutties in predicting future resuits. Actual results could
differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ include, but are not limited to,
those matters set forth in the Company's 2007 Annual Report on Forem 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Some of these factors are described
as criteria for success. The Company's failure to achieve, or limited success in achieving, these objectives could result in actual results differing materiaily from
those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements. In addition, there can be no assurance that the Company has correctly identified and assessed all of
the factors affecting the Company or that the publicly avaitable and other information the Company raceives with respect to these factors is complete or correct.

"o L3l " " i
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

MARKET RISK

The Company's market risk is impacted by changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and certain commodity prices. Pursuant to the
Company’s policies, natural hedging technigues and derivative financial instruments may be utilized to reduce the impact of adverse changes in market
prices. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes.

The Company manages inferest rate exposure through its conservative debt ratio target and its mix of fixed and floating rate debt. Interest rate swaps
may be used to adjust interest rate exposures when appropriate based on market conditions, and. for qualifying hedges, the interest differential of swaps is
included in interest expense.

The Company’s fareign exchange risk management policy emphasizes hedging anticipated intercompany and third party commercial transaction
exposures of one-year duration or less. The Company focuses on natural hedging techniques of the following form: 1) offsetting or netting of like foreign
currency flows, 2) structuring foreign subsidiary balance sheets with appropriate levels of debt to reduce subsidiary net investments and subsidiary cash
flows subject to conversion risk, 3) converting excess foreign currency deposits into U.S. dollars or the relevant functional currency and 4} avoidance of risk
by denominating contracts in the appropriate functional currency. In addition, the Campany primarily utilizes forward contracts and purchased options to
hedge commercial and intercompany transactions. Gains and losses related to qualifying hedges of commercial and intercompany transactions are deferred
and included in the basis of the underlying transactions. Derivatives used to hedge intercompany loans are marked to market with the corresponding gains
or losses included in the Company's Conselidated Statements of income.

The Company purchases certain raw materials, including resin, corrugate, steel, stainfess steel, aluminum and other metals, which are subject to
price volatility caused by unpredictable factors. White future movements of raw material costs are uncertain, a variety of programs, inctuding periodic raw
material purchases, purchases of raw materials for future delivery and customer price adjustments help the Company address this risk. Where practical,
the Company uses derivatives as part of its risk management process.

The amounts shown below represent the estimated potential ecanomic less that the Company couid incur from adverse changes in either interest
rates or foreign exchange rates using the value-at-risk estimation model. The value-at-risk model uses historical foreign exchange rates and interest rates
to estimate the volatility and correlation of these rates in future periods. It estimates a loss in fair market value using statistical modeling techniques that
are based on a variance/covariance approach and includes substantially all market risk exposures (specifically excluding equity-method investments), The
fair value losses shown in the table below have no impact on results of operations or financial candition, but are shown as an illustration of the impact of
potential adverse changes ininterest and foreign currency exchange rates. The following table indicates the calculated amounts for each of the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (doifars in millions):

2007 December 31, 2006 December 31,  Confidence

Market Risk™ Average 2007 Average 2006 Level
Interest rates $8.8 $10.2 $8.0 $75 95%
Foreign exchange $4.9 $7.1 $5.0 $3.5 95%

{1) Commodity price risk is not shown because the zmounts are not material.

The 95% confidence interval signifies the Company's degree of confidence that actual losses would not exceed the estimated losses shown above.
The amounts shown here disregard the possibility that interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates could move in the Company's favor. The value-
at-risk model assumes that all movements in these rates will be adverse. Actual experience has shown that gains and losses tend to offset each other
overtime, and it is highly unlikely that the Company could experience losses such as these over an extended period of time. These amounts should not be
cansidered projections of future losses, because actual resutts may differ significantly depending upon activity in the glabal financial markets.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ANNUAL REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Newell Rubbermaid Inc. is responsible for the accuracy and internal consistency of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and footnotes centained in this annual report.

The Company's management is also respansible for establishing and maintaining adeguate internal contral over financial reperting. Newell Rubbermaid Inc.
operates under a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of published financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal accounting control system is
evaluated for effectiveness by management and is tested, monitored and revised as necessary. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed,
have inherent limitations. Therefare, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasenable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation.

The Company's management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making
its assessment, the Company’s management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Spansoring Organizatiens of the Treadway Commission {COS0}
in Intemal Control—integrated Framework. Based on the results of its evaluation, the Company's management concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, the
Company's internal control over financtal reporting is effective based on those criteria.

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, have audited the financial statements prepared by the management
of Newell Rubbermaid Inc. and the effectiveriess of Newell Rubbermaid Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting. Their reports on the financial statements
and on the effectiveness of Newell Rubbermaid Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting are presented below.

NEWELL RUBBERMAID INC.

Atlanta, Georgia
February 29, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Newell Rubbermaid Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Newell Rubbermaid [nc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007,
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
an our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Gversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principtes used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis far our opinion.

Inour opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Newell Rubbermaid Inc.
and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 16, in 2007 the Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” Also, as discussed in Notes 1 and 13, in 2006 the Company adapted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans,” and the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R}, “Share-Based Payment.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Newell Rubbermaid Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fntemal Controi—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 28, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Gnmit ¢ LLP

Baltimors, Maryland
February 28, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockhalders
Newell Rubbermaid Inc.

We have audited Mewell Rubbermaid Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fnternal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Spensoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Newell Rubbermaid Inc.'s
managesment is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financiaf reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements and Annual Report on Internal Gontrol over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinien on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accerdance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control aver financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasanable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositian of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditians, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our epinien, Newell Rubbermaid Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 3t,
2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Newell Rubbermaid Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, steckholders’ equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 of Newell Rubbermaid Inc. and our report

dated February 28, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thergon.

Baltimore, Maryland
February 28, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in millions, except per share dala}

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Net sales $6,407.3 $6,201.0 $5,717.2
Cost of products sotd 4,150.1 41310 3,959.1
Gross margin 2,251.2 2.070.0 1,758.1
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,430.9 1,347.0 1,117.7
Impairment charges — — 0.4
fRestructuring costs 86.0 66.4 12.6
Operating income 740.3 656.6 567.4
Nongperating expenses:
Interest expense, net of interest income of $27.6, $23.0,
and $15.0 in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively 104.1 132.0 1271
QOther expense (income), net 1.3 97 (23.1)
Net nonoperating expenses 1114 141.7 1040
Income from cantinuing operations before income taxes 628.9 514.9 4634
Income taxes 148.7 44.2 51.1
income from continuing operations 479.2 470.7 406.3
Loss from discentinued operations, net of tax (2.1 (85.7) (155.0}
Net income $ 467.1 $ 3850 $ 2513
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 276.0 2746 2744
Giluted 286. 2755 274.9
Per common share:
Basic:
Income from continving operations $ L4 $ 17 $ 148
Loss from discontinued operations (0.04) (0.31} (0.56)
Net income $ 189 $ 140 $ 092
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 1.2 $ L7 $ 148
Loss from discontinued operations {0.04} {0.31) {0.56)
Net income $ 168 $ 140 $ 09
, Dividends per share $ 084 $ 084 $ 034

See Notes to Consclidated Financia! Statements,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{Amounts in milfions, except par value)

December 31, 2007 2006
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 329.2 $ 2010
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $39.1 for 2007 and $38.2 for 2006 1,166.4 1,113.6
Inventories, net 940.4 850.6
Deferred income taxes 102.0 110.1
Prepaid expenses and other 137 1335
Current assets of discontinued operations — 68.1
Total Current Assets 26517 24769
Property, plant and equipment, net £88.6 746.9
Deferred income taxes 29.4 1.3
Goodwill 26087 24357
Other intangible assets, net 501.8 458.8
Other assets 202.7 190.9
Total Assets $6.6829 $6.310.5

Liabilities and Stockhelders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 616.9 $ 5499
Accrued compensation 170.7 1779
Other accrued liabilities 1447 710.9
Income taxes payable 440 144.3
Notes payable 15.3 23.9
Current portion of long-term debt 972.2 253.6
Current tiabilities of discontinued operations - 36.1
Total Current Liabilities 2,563.8 1,896.6

Long-term debt 1,197.4 19723
Other noncurrent liabilities 6144 551.4
Stockhotders’ Equity;

Comman stock, authorized shares, 800.0 at $1.00 par value; 292.6 291.0
Qutstanding shares, before treasury:

2007 —-292.6

2006—291.0
Treasury stock, at cost; (415.1) (411.6)
Shares held:

2007 —15.9

2006 —15.7
Additional paid-in capital 570.3 505.0
Retained earnings 1,922.1 1,690.4
Accumulated other comprehensive l0ss {123.2) (184.6)

Total Stockholders' Equity 22473 1,890.2

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $6,682.9 $6,310.5

See Notes 10 Consolidated Financiab Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in millions)
Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Operating Activities
Net income $467.1 $385.0 $251.3
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1710 193.3 1916
Non-cash restructuring costs 1.1 2712 56.2
Deferred income taxes 0.9 (5.0 (63.9)
Gain on sale of assets — (4.5} (20.0)
impairment charges — 50.9 4.4
Loss (gain} on disposal of discentinued operations 1.9 0.7} 9.8
Stock-based compensation expense 36.4 449 6.1
Income tax benefits (41.3) (102.8) (73.9)
Other (3.4 (129 (23.9)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (7.9} 25.1 (5L.5)
Inventories {(53.6) (32.2) 32.3
Accounts payable 54.0 {51.0) 213
Accrued liabilities and other aLn 96.9 118.5
Discontinued operations - 30.1 60.3
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $655.3 $643.4 $641.6
lavesting Activities
Acquisitians, net of cash acquired $(106.0) $ (60.6) $(740.0)
Capital expenditures (157.3) (138.3) (92.2)
Disposals of noncurrent assets and sales of businesses (2.3) 187.0 65.5
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities $(265.6) $ (119 $(766.7)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt $420.8 $1770 $33170
Payments on notes payable and long-term debt (478.3) (511.0) (360.1}
Cash dividends (234.7) {232.8) (231.5)
Proceeds from exercised stock options and gther 25.4 16.7 {2.6)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities $(266.8) ${550.1) $(251.2)
Exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents 5.3 4.1 (7.8)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 128.2 85.5 (390.1)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 201.0 115.5 505.6
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $329.2 $201.0 $ 1155
Supplemental cash flow disclosures —cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes, net of refunds $ 99.0 $ 195 $ 849
Interest $1355 $ 1609 $136.8

See Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Amounts in miffions)

Additional Total
Common  Treasury Paid In  Retained  Accumulated Other  Stockholders’
Stock Stock Capital  Earnings  Comprehensive Loss Equity
Balance at December 31, 2004 $290.1  $4116) $437.5  $1,5186 $ (70.4) $1,764.2
Net income — — — 2513 — 2513
Foreign currency translation — — — — (107.6} (107.6)
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of ($29.3} tax — —_ — — (59.8) (59.8)
Gain on derivative instruments, net of $6.8 tax — — — e 11.1 11.1
Total comprehensive income $ 950
Cash dividends on common stock — — — (2315 — (231.5)
Exercise of stock aptions 0.1 — 04 — —_ 0.5
Stock-based compensation and other — — 151 — — 15.1
Balance at December 31, 2005 $290.2  $(411.6) $453.0  $i5383 $(226.7) $1,643.2
Net income — — —_ 385.0 — 385.0
Foreign currency translation —_— — — — 28.8 288
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of $27.1 tax — — — — 30.0 50.0
Loss on derivative instruments, net of ($2.6} tax — — — — 4.3) (4.3)
Total comprehensive income $ 4595
Cash dividends on common stock — — (232.8) —_ {232.8)
Exercise of stock options 0.8 — 19.1 o — 19.9
Adjustment to inifially apply SFAS 158, net of ($15.4) tax — — —_ — (324 (32.4)
Stock-based compensation and other — — 329 {0.1) — 328
Balance at December 31, 2006 $281.0 $(411.6) $505.0  $1,6904 $(184.6) $1,890.2
Net income — — — 467.1 — 467.1
Foreign currency translation — —_ — — 28.2 282

Unrecognized pension and other pestretirement
benefits, net of $17.8 tax — — — — 26.3 26.3
Gain on derivative instruments, net of $23.3 tax — — — —_ 6.9 6.9
Total comprehensive income $ 5285
Cash dividends on comman stock — — — {234.7} — (234.7)
Exercise of stock options 0.9 — 216 — — 225
Stock-based compensation and other 0.7 (3.5 43.7 {0.1} — 40.8
Balance at December 31, 2007 $2926 $(415.1) $570.3  $19221 $(123.2) $2,247.3

See Ngtes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOOTNOTE 1
Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

Newell Rubbermaid is a global marketer of consumer and commercial products that touch the lives of peopte where they work, live and play. The Company’s
strong portfolie of brands includes Sharpie® Paper Mate® Dymo® Expo® Waterman® Parker® Ralodex® Irwin® Lenox® BernzOmatic?® Rubbermaid? Levolor?
Graco® Calphalon® and Goody® The Company's multi-product effering consists of well known name-brand consumer and commercia! products in four
business segments: Cleaning, Organization & Décor; Office Products; Tools & Hardware; and Other (Home & Family}.

Principles of Consolidation

The Censolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company, its majority owned subsidiaries and variable interest entities where the
Company is the primary beneficiary, after elimination of intercompany transactions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain estimates by management in determining the Company’s assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain 2006 and 2005 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation.

Goncentration of Credit Risk
The Company sells products to custemers in diversified industries and geographic regions and, therefore, has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The Company continuously evaluates the creditworthiness of its customers and generally does not require coltateral.

The Company evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combinatien of factors. When aware of a specific customer’s inability
to meet its financial obligations, such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioration in the customes's operating results or financial position, the
Company records a specific reserve for bad debt to reduce the related receivable to the amount the Company reasonably believes is collectible. The
Company also records reserves for bad debt for all other customers based on a variety of facters, including the length of time the receivables are past due
and historical collection experience. Accounts are also reviewed for potential write-off on a case by case basis. Accounts deemed uncollectible are written
off, net of expected recoveries, If circumstances related to specific customers change, the Company's estimates of the recoverability of receivables could
be further adjusted.

The Company's forward exchange contracts, long-term cross currency interest rate swaps, and option contracts do not subject the Company to risk
due to foreign exchange rate movement, because gains and losses on these instruments generally offset gains and losses on the assets, liabilities, and
other transactions being hedged. The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties to certain derivative
financial instruments. The Company does not obtain collateral or gther security to support derivative financial instruments subject to credit risk, but
monitors the credit standing of the counterparties.

The credit exposure that results from commodity, interest rate, and foreign exchange risk is the fair value of contracts with a positive fair value as
of the reporting date. The credit exposure on the Company’s interest rate derivatives and foreign currency derivatives at December 31, 2007 was $1.2 million
and $2.1 million, respectively, The credit exposure on the Company's commaodity derivatives at December 31, 2007 was immaterial.

Sales Recognition

Sales of merchandise and freight billed to customers are recognized when title passes and alt substantial risks of ownership change, which generally occurs
either upon shipment or upon defivery based upon contractual terms. Sales are net of provisions for cash discounts, returns, customer discounts (such as
volume or trade discounts), cooperative advertising and other sales related discounts.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash en-hand and highly-liquid investments that have a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value using the last-in, first-aut (LIFO} or first-in, first-out (FIFQ) methods (see Footnote 5 for additional
information}. The Company reduces its inventory value for estimated obsolete and slow moving inventory in an amount equal to the difference between the
cost of inventory and the net realizable value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less
favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation expense is calculated
principally on the straight-line basis. Useful lives determined by the Company are as follows: buildings and improvements (20—40 years) and machinery
and equipment (312 years).

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

The Company conducts its annual test for impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets in the third quarter because it coincides with its
annual strategic planning process.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment annually at the operating segment level {herein referred to as the reporting unit). The Company
also tests for impairment if events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is below its carrying
amount. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit is greater than the fair value, impairment may be present. The Company assesses the fair value of its
reparting units for its goodwill based on discounted cash flow models, earnings multiples or an actual sales offer received from a prospective buyer, if
available. Assumptions critical to the Campany's fair value estimates under the discounted cash flow model include the discount rate, projected average
revenue growth, projected long-term growth rates in the determination of terminal values, and product costs.

The Company measures the amount of any goodwill impairment based upon the estimated fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities of the
reporting unit, including any unrecognized intangible assets, and estimates the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment charge is recognized to the
extent the recorded goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill.

The Company also evaluates indefinite-lived intangible assets (primarily trademarks and trade names) for impairment annually. The Company also
tests for impairment if events and circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangitle asset is below
its carrying amount. Assumptions critical to the Company’s evaluation of indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment include the discount rate, royalty
rates used in its evaluation of trade names, projected average revenug growth, and projected long-term growth rates in the determination of terminal values. An
impairment charge is recorded if the carrying amount of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds the estimated fair value on the measurement date.

See Footnote 7 tor additional detail on goodwill and other intangible assets.

Other Long-Lived Assets

The Company tests its ather long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS") No, 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” The Company evaluates if impairment indicators related o its property, plant and equipment and
other fong-lived assets are present. These impairment indicators may include a significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset or asset group, a
significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset or asset group is being used or in its physical condition, or a current-period
operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of operating or cash flow losses or a forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the
use of a long-lived asset or asset group. If impairment indicators are present, the Company estimates the future cash flows for the asset or group of assets.
The sum of the undiscounted future cash flows attributable to the asset or group of assets is compared to their carrying amount. The cash flows are estimated
utilizing various assumptions regarding future revenue and expenses, working capital, and proceeds from asset disposals on a basis consistent with the strategic
plan. If the carrying amount exceeds the sum of the undisceunted future cash flows, the Company determines the assets’ fair value by discounting the
future cash flows using a discount rate required for a similar investment of like risk and records an impairment charge as the difference between the fair
value and the carrying value of the asset group, Generally, the Company performs its testing of the asset group at the product-line level, as this is the
fowest level for which identifiable cash flows are available.
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Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company records shipping and handling costs as a component of costs of products sold.

Product Liability Reserves

The Company has a self-insurance program for product liability that includes reserves for self-retained losses and certain excess and aggregate risk
transfer insurance. The Company uses histarical loss experience combined with actuarial evaluation methods, review of significant individual files and
the application of risk transfer programs in determining required product liability reserves. The Company's actuarial evaluation methods take into account
claims incurred but not reported when determining the Company's preduct liability reserve. While the Company believes that it has adequately reserved
for these claims, the ultimate outcome of these matters may exceed the amounts recerded by the Company, and such additional losses may be material

to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Product Warranties

In the normal course of business, the Company offers warranties for a variety of its products. The specific terms and conditions of the warranties vary
depending upon the specific product and markets in which the products were sold. The Company accrues for the estimated cost of product warranty at
the time of sale based an historical experience.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Cooperative advertising with customers is recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements as a
reduction of net sales and totaled $149.5 million, $153.3 million and $147.4 millien for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. All other advertising costs are
recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses and totaled $216.5 million, $199.9 million and $135.6 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivefy.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs relating to both future and current products are charged to selling, general and administrative expenses as incurred.
These costs aggregated $111.2 million, $102.0 millien and $92.5 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company follows SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended. Derivative financial instruments are
generally used to manage certain commodity, interest rate and foreign currency risks. These instruments include commodity swaps, interest rate swaps,
long-term cross currency interest rate swaps, forward exchange contracts and options. The Company's forward exchange contracts, options and long-term
cross currency interest rate swaps do not subject the Company to risk due to foreign exchange rate movement because gains and losses on these
instruments generally offset gains and losses on the assets, liabilities, and other transactions being hedged.

On the date in which the Company enters into a derivative, the derivative is designated as a hedge of the identified exposure. The Company measures
effectiveness of its hedging relationships both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis. No ineffectiveness was recorded on designated hedges in 2007,
2006 or 2005.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Gains and losses on interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges, te the extent that the hedge relationship has been effective, are deferred in other
comprehensive income and recognized in interest expense over the period in which the Company recognizes interest expense on the related debt instrument.
Any ineffectiveness on these instruments is immediately recognized in interest expense in the period that the ineffectivenass occurs.

The Campany also has designated certain interest rate swaps as fair value hedges, which have been structured to be 100% effective. These hedging
instruments include interest rate swaps, long-term cross currency interest rate swaps and forward exchange contracts. See foreigo currency management
below for discussion of cross currency interest rate swaps and forward exchange contracts Gains o7 losses resulting from the early termination of interest
rate swaps are deferred as an increase or decrease to the carrying value of the related debt and amortized as an adjustment to the yield of the related debt
instrument over the remaining period originally covered by the swap. The cash received or paid ralating to the termination of interest rate swaps is included
in Other as an operating activity in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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Foreign Currency Management

The Company utilizes forward exchange contracts and options to manage foreign exchange risk related to both known and anticipated intercompany
transactions and third-party commercial transaction exposures of approximately one year in duration or less. The effective portion of the changes in fair
value of these instruments is reported in other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods in which the hedged
transactions affect earnings. Any ineffective portion is immediately recognized in earnings.

The Company also utilizes long-term cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge long-term intercompany financing transactions. Gains and losses
related to qualifying forward exchange contracts, which hedge certain anticipated transactions are recognized in other comprehensive income as an asset
or liability until the underlying transaction occurs.

The asset or liability related to these transactions is recerded in the captions Prepaid expenses and other, Other assets, Other accrued liabilities or
Other noncurrent liabilities en the Consolidated Balance Sheet depending on the maturity of the Company's cross currency interest rate swaps and forward
contracts at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The earnings impact of cash flow hedges relating to forecasted purchases of inventory is generally reported in
cost of progucts sold to match the underlying transaction being hedged. For hedged forecasted transactions, hedge accounting is discontinued if the forecasted
transaction is no longer probable of occurring, in which case previously deferred hedging gains or losses would be recorded to earnings immediately. The gains
and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income will be reclassified to earnings upon completion of the underlying transaction being hedged.

The fair vatue of foreign currency hedging instruments is recorded in the captions Prepaid expenses and other, Other assets, Other accrued liabilities or
QOther noncurrent liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets depending on the maturity of the Company's cross currency interest rate swaps and forward
contracts at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The eamings impact of cash flow hedges relating to forecasted purchases of inventory is generally reported in cost
of products sold to match the underlying transaction being hedged. For hedged forecasted transactions, hedge accounting is discontinued if the forecasted
transaction is no longer prabable of octurring, in which case previpusly deferred hedging gains or losses would be recorded to eamings immediately.

Disclosures ahout Fair Yalue of Financial Instruments

The Cempany’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivaleats, accounts receivable, notes payable and short and long-term debt. The fair value
of these instruments approximates carrying values due to their short-term duration, except as follows:

Qualifying Derivative Instruments
The fair value of the Company's quaifying derivative instruments is recorded in the Consalidated Balance Sheets and is described in more detaif in Footnote 11.

Long-Term Debt
The fair values of the Company’s long-term debt issued under the medium-term note program and the junior convertible subordinated debentures are based
on quoted market prices and are as follows as of December 31, {in millioas):

2007 2006
Medium-term note program $1,085.2 $1.3217
Junior convertible subordinated debentures $ 13907 $ 3981

All other significant long-term debt is pursuant to floating rate instruments whose carrying amounts approximate fair value.

Foreign Currency Translation
Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the rates of exchange in effect at year-end. The related transfation adjustments
are made directly to accumulated other comprehensive income. Income and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange in effect
during the year. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions of these subsidiaries are included in net income. International subsidiaries operating
in highly inflationary economies translate nonmongtary assets at historical rates, while net monetary assets are translated at current rates, with the
resulting translation adjustment included in net income as other expense (income), net.
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Income Taxes

In accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, the Company accounts for deferred income taxes using the asset and liahility approach.
Under this approach, deferred income taxes are recognized based on the tax effects of temparary differences between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, as measured by current enacted tax rates. Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce the delerred tax assets to an amount
that will more likely than not be realized. No provision is made for the U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of non-U.5. subsidiaries that are
considered to be permanently invested.

The Company's income tax provisions are based on ¢alculations and assumptions that are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and
other tax authorities. Although the Company believes that the positions taken an previously filed tax returns are reasonable, it has established tax and
interest reserves in recognition that various taxing autharities may challenge the positions taken, which could result in additional liabifities for taxes and
interest. The Company regularly reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability considering histerical profitability, projected future taxable income, the
expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences and tax planning strategies.

The Company adapted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes” (“FIN 48™), on January 1, 2007. FiN 48 requires application of a “more likely than not” threshold to the recognition and derecognition of tax positions.
The Company's angeing assessments of the more-likely-than-nat outcomes of tax authority examinations and related tax positions require significant
judgment and can increase or decrease the Company's effective tax rate, as well as impact operating results. The adoption of FIN 48 did not result in an
adjustment to beginning retained earnings; however, it did result in the reclassification of certain income tax assets and liabilities trom current to long-term
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, See Footnete 16 for additional information on income taxes.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense by applying the intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 257). Under APB 25, the Company generally recognized compensation
expense only for restricted stock grants. The Company recognized the compensatian expense associated with the restricted stock ratably over the associated
service period.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS Mo, 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R}"), using the
modified prospective transition methad, and therefore has not restated the resutts of prior periods. Under this transition method, stock-based compensation
expense for 2007 and 2006 includes (i) compensation expense for al stack-based compensatien awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January I,
2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
and (ji} compensation expense for all share-based payment awards granted after Janvary 1, 2006 based on estimated grant-date fair values estimated in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). Compensation expense is adjusted for estimated forfeitures and is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally five years for stock options and three years for restricted stock. The Company estimates
future forfeiture rates based on its historical experience. See Footnote 15 for additional information.

The following table is a reconciliation of the Company's net income and earnings per share to pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share
as if the Company had adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 with respect to options granted under the Company's stack option plans in 2005 (in miftions,
except per share data):

Net income:

As reported $251.3
Fair value option expense, net of income taxes of $6.7 miilion {11.0)
Pro forma $240.3
Basic earnings per share:

As reported $ 092
Pro forma $ 088
Diluted earnings per share:

As reported $091
Pro forma $ 087
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
The foHowing table displays the components of accumulated ather comprehensive loss {in millions):

Foreign Unrecognized After-tax Accumulated

Curiency Pension & Other Derivative Other

Translation Postretirement Hedging Comprehensive

Gain Costs, net of tax Gain Loss

Balance at December 31, 2006 $41.6 $(228.7) $2.5 $(184.6)
Current year change 28.2 26.3 6.9 61.4
Balance at December 31, 2007 $69.8 $(202.4) $9.4 $(123.2)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (Revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141(R)"}. SFAS 141(R) significantly changes the accounting
for business combination transactions by requiring an acquiring entity to recognize a¥l the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the
acquisition-date fair value. Additiornally, SFAS 141(R) modifies the accounting treatment for certain specified items related to business combinations and
requires a substantial number of new disclosures. SFAS 141(R) is effective for business combinations with an acquisition date in fiscal years beginning on or
after December 15, 2008, and earlier adoption is prohibited. The Company expects to prospectively adopt SFAS 141(R) on January 1, 2009,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements —An Amendment of ARB No. 51"
{“SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for ywnership interests in subsidiaries held by parties ather than the parent, the
amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncantrolling interest, changes in a parent’s ownership interest and the valuation
of retained nencontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS 160 also establishes reporting requirements that require sufficient
disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS 160 is effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and carlier adoption is prohibited. SFAS 160 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009, The
Company is still in the process of evaluating the impact SFAS 160 will have on the Company's conselidated financial statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements™ [“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, SFAS 157 emphasizes that
fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and states that a fair value measurement should be determined based on
the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. SFAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement
attribute. Accordingly, SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued Staff Positions 157-1 and 157-2
which remove certain leasing transactions from its scope and partially defer the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for certain nonfinancial assets
and liabilities. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, The Company prospectively adopted the effective pravisions of
SFAS 157 on January 1, 2008. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

FOOTNOTE 2
Acquisitions
Acquisition of Endicia
On July 1, 2007, the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity interests of PSI Systems, Ing. (“Endicia"), provider of Endicia Internet Postage, for
$51.2 million plus related acquisition costs and contingent payments of up to $25.0 million based on future revenues. The acquisition of Endicia, a leading
provider of online postage, increases the Company’s ability to leverage its other technology brands by develeping a fuli range of innovative and integrated
solutians far small and medium-sized businesses. This acquisition was acceunted for using the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, based on
a preliminary purchase price allocation, the Company recorded goodwill of $46.2 million in the Conselidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007. Pro forma
results of operattons would not be materially different as a result of this acquisition and therefore are not presented,

Endicia is party to a lawsuit filed against it alleging patent infringement. In this case, Stamps.com seeks injunctive relief in order to prevent Endicia

from continuing to engage in activities that are alleged to infringe on Stamps.com’s patents. An unfaverable outcome in this litigation, which management
does not betieve is probable, could materially adversely affect the Endicia business.
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Acquisition of Dymo

On November 23, 2005, the Company acquired Dymo, a global leader in designing, manufacturing and marketing on-demand labeling solutions, fram
Esselte AB. The purchase price of $639.2 million was finalized in 2008, after consideration of certain working capital and other adjustments. The Company
funded the purchase payment through a combination of available cash of $480.2 million and debt of $219.0 million frem pre-existing credit facilities.
In 20086, the Company finalized the purchase price allocation of $699.2 million to the identifiable assets and liabilities. The purchase price allocation
was based on management’s estimate of fair value using the assistance of third party appraisals at the date of acquisition as foltows (in miflipns):

Current assets $338
Property, plant & equipment, net 215
Goodwill 609.3
Other intangible assets, net 118.9
Qther assets 0.2

Total assets $783.7
Current liabilities $381
Deferred income taxes 429
Other noncusrent liabilities 35

Tota! liabilities $ 845

The allocation of the purchase price resulted in the recognition of $609.3 million of goodwill, primarily related to the anticipated future earnings
and cash flows of the Dymo business including the estimated effects of the integration of this business into the Office Products segment. The transaction
resulted in the recognition of $118.9 million in intangible assets consisting primarily of customer lists, patents and trademarks. Approximately $77.4 million
were indefinite-lived intangible assets related to trademarks and $41.5 million related to finite-lived intangible assets that will be amartized over periods
of 3 to 10 years with a weighted average amortization period of 5.3 years.

The transaction summarized above was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and the resuits of operations are included in the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date, The acquisition costs included in the purchase price were allocated to goodwill.

The unaudited consolidated results of aperations on a pro forma basis, as though the November 23, 2005 acquisition of Dymo had been completed on
January 1, 2005, are as follows for the year ended December 31, (in milfions, except per share amounts):

2005
Net sales $5,923.2
Income from continuing operations $ 4170
Net income $ 2620
Basic earnings per share:
Inceme from continuing operations $ 152
Net income $ 095
Dituted earnings per share:
Income fram continuing operations $ 152
Net income $ 095

These pro forma financial results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and inctude certain adjustments, such as increased interest
expense on acquisition debt. They do not reflect the effect of synergies that are expected to result from integration.

a1




Newell Rubbermaid Inc. 2007 Annual Report

FOOTNOTE 3
Discontinued Operations

The following table summarizes the results of businesses reported as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, {in millions):

2007 2006 2005
Net sales $ 356 $503.5 $ 798.2
Loss from aperations of discontinued operatiens, net of income tax expense
of $- mitlion, $8.6 million and $5.7 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively $0.2) $(86.4) $ (58.2)
(Loss) gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income tax benefit (expense)
of $3.0 million, {$6.5) million and $- million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively (11.9) 0.7 {96.8)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax $(12.1) $(85.7) $(155.0)

No amaunts related to interest expense have been allocated to discantinued operations.

As of December 31, 2006, the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations consist of the remaining portions of the Home Décor Europe
business. The following table presents summarized balance sheet information of the remaining portions of the Home Décor Europe business as of
December 31, 2006 (in miffions):

Accounts receivable, net $35.8
Inventories, net 18.8
Prepaid expenses and other 1.0
Property, plant and equipment, net 12.5
Total Assets $68.1
Accounts payable $11.6
Accrued compensation 41
QOther accrued liabilities 15.3
Other noncurrent liabilities 5.1
Total Liabilities $36.1
Home Décar Europe

The Home Décar Europe business designed, manufactured and sold drapery hardware and window treatments in Europe under Gardinia® and other local brands
and was previously classified in the Company's former Home Fashions segment. In 2005, Home Décor Europe had net sales of approximately $377 miltion.

In the first quarter of 2006, as a result of a revised corporate strategy and an initiative to improve the Company's portfolio of businesses to focus
on those that are best aligned with the Company's strategies of differentiated products, best cost and consumer branding, the Company began exploring
various options for its Home Décor Europe business. Those options included marketing the business for potential safe. As a result of this effort, the
Company received a preliminary offer from a potential buyer which gave the Company a better indication of the business' fair value. Based on this offer,
the Company determined that the business had a net book value in excess of its fair value. Due to the apparent decline in value, the Company conducted
an impairment test and recorded a $50.9 million impairment charge in the first quarter of 20086. This charge, as well as the operations of this business
during 2006 and 2005, are included in the loss from operations of discontinued operations in the table above.

tn September 2006, the Company entered into an agreement for the intended sale of portions of the Home Décor Europe business to a global
manufacturer and marketer of window treatments and furnishings. The Central and Eastern European, Nordic and Portuguese operations of this
business were sold on December 1, 2006. The sale of the operations in Poland and the Ukraine closed on February 1, 2007.

In October 2006, the Company received a binding offer for the intended sate of the Southern European region of the Home Décor Europe business
to another party, which represented the remaining operations of the Home Décor Europe business. The sale of operations in France and Spain closed on
lanuary 1, 2007 and in Italy on January 31, 2007.

In connection with these transactions, the Company recorded a loss of $11.3 mifiion, net of tax, in 2006. in 2007, the Company recorded a loss of
$10.0 million, net of tax, to complete the divestiture of Home Décor Europe. The net loss for 2007 and 2006 are reported in the table above as part of the
gain {loss) on disposal of discontinued operations.
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Little Tikes

In September 2006, the Company entered into an agreement for the intended sale of its Little Tikes business unit to a global family and children's entertainment
company. Little Tikes is a global marketer and manufacturer of children's toys and furniture for consumers. The transaction closed in the fourth quarter of
2006, resulting in a gain of $16.0 million, net of tax, in 2006. This business was previously included in the Company's Other (Home & Family) segment, The
operations of the business for 2006 and 2005 are included in loss from operations of discontinued operations in the table above. In 2005, Littte Tikes had
net sales of approximately $250 million.

European Cookware

In October 2005, the Company entered into an agreement for the intended sale of its European Cookware business. The Company completed this divestiture
on January 1, 2006. This business included the brands Pyrex® (used under exclusive license from Corning Incorporated and its subsidiaries in Europe,

the Middle East and Africa only) and Vitri® and was previously included in the Company’s Other (Home & Family} segment. In cannection with this
transaction, the Company recorded a loss related to the sale of $33.9 million in 2005 and an additional loss of $1.6 million upon completion of the sale in
2006. The Yosses are reported in the table above as loss on disposal of discontinued operations. In 2005, the European Cookware business had net sales
of approximately $115 miltion.

Curver

In Janeary 2005, the Company entered into an agreement for the intended sale of the Company’s Curver business. In June 20085, the Cempany completed
the sale of its Curver business. The Curver business included the Company's European indoor organization and home storage division and was previously
reported in the former Cleaning & Organization segment. The sales price, which was subject to reduction for working capital adjustments, was $5 million,
paid at closing, plus a note receivable for $5 million, payable within 12 years from closing. The Campany may also receive contingent payments, up to an
aggregate maximum of $25 million, based on the adjusted earnings before interest and taxes of the Curver business for the five years ending December 31,
2009, Due to anticipated shortfalis in working capita!, the Company does not expect to collect any of the $5 milfion note receivable. In addition, the Company
has not included the contingent payments in the calculation of the loss on disposal of discontinued aperations. In connegtion with this transaction, the
Company recorded a loss related to the sale of $62.0 million, net of tax, in 2005. This loss is included in the gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued
operations in the table above.

FOOTNOTE 4
Restructuring Costs

Project Acceleration Restructuring Activities

In the third quarter of 2005, the Company announced a global initiative referred to as Project Acceleration aimed at strengthening and transforming the
Company's portfolio. \n connection with Project Acceleratian, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a restructuring plan (the “Plan™) that
commenced in the fourth quarter of 2005. The Plan is designed to reduce manufacturing overhead to achieve best cost positions and to allow the Company
to increase investment in new product development, brand building and marketing, Project Acceleration ingludes the anticipated closures of approximately
ane-third of the Company's 64 manufacturing facilities, thereby optimizing the Company’s geographic manufacturing footprint. Since the Plan's inception,
the Company has announced the clesure of 16 manufacturing facilities and approximately eight additional facilities remain to be closed. In total through
December 31, 2007, the Company has recorded $203.7 million of costs related to Project Acceleration, which excludes restructuring costs associated with
discontinued operations. The Company recorded restructuring costs of $86.0 million and $66.4 million related to Project Acceleration in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. In 2005, the Company recorded restructuring costs of $72.6 million, of which $51.3 million related to Project Acceleration and $21.3 millien
related to restructuring actions approved prior to the commencement of Project Acceleration (see below for details}. The Plan is expected to result in
cumulative restructuring costs over the life of the initiative of approximately $375 million to $400 million ($315 million to $340 miltion after tax), with
between $150 million and $160 millien ($120 mitlion to $130 million after tax) expected to be incurred in 2008 {unaudited). Approximately 67% of the
cumaulative costs are expected to be cash costs.
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The table below summarizes the restructuring costs recognized for Project Acceleration restructuring activities for continuing operations for the years

ended December 31 {in miffions):

2007 2006 2005
Facility exit costs $211 $14.9 $51.3
Employee severance and termination benefits 36.4 447 -
Exited contractual commitments and other 219 6.8 —
Restructuring costs $86.0 $66.4 $51.3

Restructuring provisions were determined based on estimates prepared at the time the restructuring actions were approved by management and are
periodically updated for changes, and also include amounts recognized as incurred. A summary of the Company's accrued restructuring reserves for
continuing operations as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, is as follows (in millions):

12/31/06 Costs 12/31/07

Balance Provision Ingurred Balance

Facility exit costs § — $21.7 $21.n $ —
Employee severance and termination benefits 289 36.4 {(42.8) 225
Exited contractual commitments and other 2.0 21.9 {1.7) 16.2
$30.9 $86.0 $(78.2) $38.7

12/31/05 Costs 12/31/06

Balance Provision Incurred Balance

Facility exit costs $— $14.9 $14.9) $ —
Employee severance and termination benefits — 447 {15.8) 289
Exited contractual commitments and other — 6.8 {4.8) 20
$— $66.4 $(35.5) $30.9

Costs incurred include cash payments and the impairment of assets associated with vacated facilities.

The following table depicts the changes in accrued restructuring reserves for the Plan for the period ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,

aggregated by reportable business segment (in miflions}:

12/31/06 Costs 12/31/07

Segment Balance Provision Incurred Balance
Cleaning, Organization & Décar $ 44 $45 $ 8.1 $08
Office Products 254 45.0 41.3) 231
Tools & Hardware 0.4 29.7 (16.2) 139
Other (Home & Family) 0.3 1.7 (2.0) -
Corporate 0.4 5.1 (4.6) 09
$309 $86.0 $78.2) $38.7

12/31/05 Costs 12/31/06

Segment Balance Provision tncurred Balance
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $— $22.0 $(17.6) $44
Office Products — 38.7 (13.3} 254
Tools & Hardware — 3.6 (3.2 0.4
Other (Home & Family) - 13 (1.0 0.3
Corporate — 0.8 {0.4) 0.4
$— $66.4 $(35.5) $30.9
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During 2006, the Company received a better indication of the value of assets being disposed of in the Other (Home & Family) segment and also made
changes to a disposal group of assets in the former Cleaning & Organization segment. These assets were previously written down to estimated net realizable
value during the fourth quarter of 2005 as part of Project Acceleration. As a result, the Company reversed $4.8 million of restructuring costs in 2006 due to
a combination of higher proceeds and changes made to a disposal group of assets,

Project Acceleration commenced in December 2005 and resulted in non-cash facility restructuring costs in 2005, aggregated by reportable business
segment, as follows (in millions):

Segment Provision
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $29.3
Office Products 86
Tools & Hardware 6.8
QOther {Home & Family} 6.6

$51.3

Pre-Project Acceleration Restructuring Activities

The Company announced a restructuring plan (the “2001 Plan”) in 2001. The specific objectives of the 2001 Plan were to streamline the Company’s
supply chain to become the best-cost glabal provider throughout the Company's portfalio by reducing worldwide headcount and consolidating duplicative
manufacturing facilities. Under the 2001 Plan, the Company exited 84 facilities, of which 31 pertain to discentinued operations, and reduced headcount by
approximately 12,000. The Company recarded $461.7 million in restructuring costs under the 2001 Plan, including $179.2 million for discontinued operatians.
Restructuring provisions were determined based on estimates prepared at the time the specific restructuring actions were approved by management, and
also include amounts recognized as incurred. In 2005, the Company reduced its restructuring reserve by approximately $5.7 million, primarily as a result
of higher proceeds received from the sale of property, plant and equipment and favorable negotiations on exited contracts. Approximately $1.0 million of
pre-Acceleration restructuring reserves remain as of December 31, 2007. While the accounting charges associated with the 2001 Plan were completed in
the second quarter of 2004, the Company continued to selectively approve individual restructuring plans. The following table shows the restructuring costs,
net of reversals, recognized under the terms of the 2001 Plan and for the selective restructuring actions prior to Project Acceleration for the year ended
December 31, 2005, excluding restructuring costs related to discontinued operations (i mifiions):

2005

Facility and other exit costs $79
Employee severance and termination benefits 11.1
Exited contractual commitments and other 2.3
Restructuring costs $21.3

Cash paid for restructuring activities, including Pre-Project Acceleration and Project Acceleration restructuring activities, was $53.1 million,
$26.1 million and $34.3 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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FOOTNOTE 5
Inventories, Net

The components of net inventories were as follows as of December 31, (/7 millions):

007 2006

Materials and supplies $170.8 $1728
Work in process 17138 158.6
Finished products 581.8 518.2
$940.4 $850.6

Inventory costs include direct materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead, or when finished goods are sourced, the cost is the amount paid to
the third-party. Cost of certain domestic inventories (approximately 59.2% and 59.6% of gross inventory costs at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively)
was determined by the LIFO method; for the balance, cost was determined using the FIFG methed. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, LIFQ reserves were
$40.0 million and $38.1 million, respectively. The Company recognized a gain (loss) of $3.6 million, ($2.7) milfion, and $0.1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
raspectively, related to the liquidation of LIFO based inventaries.

FOOTNOTE 6
Property, Plant & Equipment, Net

Property, plant and equipment, net consisted of the following as of December 31, (/n millions):

2007 2006

Land $ 365 $ 31
Buildings and improvements 446.0 4529
Machinery and equipment 1,844.9 1,876.7
234 2,363.7

Accumulated depreciation (1,638.8) {1,616.8)
$ G886 $ 7469

Depreciation expense was $143.2 millign, $159.5 million and $180.4 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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FOOTNOTE 7
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Net

A summary of changes in the Company’s goodwill is as follows (/n milfions):

200 2006

Balance at January 1, $2,435.1 $2,304.4
Acquisitions ™ na 68.9
Qther, primarily foreign currency translation 101.2 624
Balance at December 31, $2.608.7 $2,435.7

The following table summarizes goodwill by reportable segment as of December 31, {/n millions). Management considers goodwilt a corporate asset
and does not consider goadwill and ¢changes to goodwill balances in evaluating reportable segment performance. As a result, goodwiil has been reflected

as a corporate asset in the segment information included in Footnete 18.

2007 2006
Cleaning, Organization & Décar $ 245.2 $ 2199
Office Products 1,338.9 1,198.6
Toals & Hardware 736.8 7304
QOther (Home & Family) 287.8 286.8
Total Goodwill $2,608.7 $2.435.7
Other intangible assets, net consisted of the following as of December 31, (in millions):
Weighted Average
2007 2006 Amortization Period Amortization Periods
Trade names -~ indefinite life $27394 $274.8 N/A N/A
Trade names —other 45.2 492 9years 2-20 years
Other® ma 2199 B years 3-14 years
595.6 543.9
Accumulated amortization 93.8) (85.1)

$501.8 $458.8

{1) Represents Endicia ($46.2 million) and gther individualty immaterial acquisitions {$25.6 million} in 2007 and Dyma {$28.5 milligr}, CardScan {($16.0 million) and other individually immaterial

acquisitions {$24.4 million) in 2006.
{2) Other consists primarily of capitalized software, non-compete agreements, patents and customer fists.

Other intangible amortization expense, including capitalized software amortization, was $33.8 mitlion in both 2007 and 2006 and $14.6 miltion in 2005.
As of December 31, 2007, the aggregate estimated intangible amortization amounts for the succeeding five years are as follows {in miffions):

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$31.5 $32.9 $27.0 $18.8 $15.9

Actual amgrtization expense to be reported in future periods could differ materially from these estimates as a result of acquisitions, changes in useful

lives and other relevant factors.
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FOOTNOTE 8
Other Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities included the following as of December 31, {(i7 milfions):

2007 2006
Customer accruals $304.0 $277.1
Accrued self-insurance liability 821 86.9
Accrued restructering (See Footnote 4) 39.7 318
Accrued pension, defined contribution and other postretirement benefits 499 49.2
Aceruals for manufacturing expenses, including inventory received 122.0 118.2
Acerued medical and life insurance 114 14.7
Accrued interest and interest rate swaps E1 IR 431
Accrued contingencies, primarily legal, environmental and warranty 274 355
QOther 76.7 54.4
QOther accrued liabilities $744.7 $710.9

Customer accruals are promotional allowances and rebates, including cooperative advertising, given to customers in exchange tor their selling
efforts. The self-insurance accrual is primarily casualty liabilities such as workers” compensation, general and product liability and auto liability and is
estimated based upon historical loss experience combined with actuarial evaluation methods, review of significant individual files and the application
of risk transfer programs.

FOOTNOTE 9
Credit Arrangements

The Company has short-term foreign and domestic uncommitted lines of credit with varipus banks that are available for shari-term financing. Borrowings
under the Company’s uncommitted lines of credit are subject to the discretion of the lender. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Gompany had notes
payable to banks in the amount of $15.3 million and $23.9 million, respectively, with weighted average interest rates of 10.9% and 6.3%, respectively.

On November 14, 2005, the Company entered into a $750.0 million five-year syndicated revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”). On an annual basis,
the Company may request an extension of the Revolver {subject to lender approval) for additional one-year periods. The Company elected to extend the
Revalver for additional one-year periods in both October 2006 and October 2007, and, as a result, the Revolver will now expire in November 2012. All but one
lender approved the extensien in 2006. Accordingly, the Company has a $750.0 million facility through November 2010, and a $725.0 million facility from
November 2010 to November 2012. At both December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no borrowings under the Revolver.

In liew of berrawings under the Revolver, the Company may issue up to $750.0 million of commercial paper through 2010 and $725.0 million thereafter,
through 2012. The Revolver provides the committed backup liquidity required to issue commercial paper. Accordingly, commercial paper may only be issued
up to the amount available for barrowing under the Revolver. The Revolver also provides for the issuance of up to $100.0 miltion of standby letters of credit
so long as there is a sufficient amount available for borrowing under the Revolver. At December 31, 2007, there was $197.0 million of commercial paper
outstanding and ne standby letters of credit issued under the Revolver. At December 31, 2006, there was no commercial paper outstanding and there were
no standby letters of credit issued under the Revolver.

The Revolver permits the Company te borrow funds on a variety of interest rate terms. The Revolver requires, among other things, that the Company
maintain certain interest coverage and total indebtedness to total capital ratios, as defined in the agreement. The Revolver also limits the amount of
indebtedness subsidiaries may incur. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company was in compliance with the provisions of the agreement governing
the Revolver.
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FOOTNOTE 10
Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt as of December 31, (in miflions):

2007 2006
Medium-term notes (original maturities ranging from 7 to 30 years, average interest rate of 5.48%) $1,075.0 $1,325.0
Commercial paper 147.0 —
Floating rate note 448.0 448.0
Junior convertible subordinated debentures 436.7 436.7
Terminated interest rate swaps 85 11.9
QOther long-term debt 44 13
Total debt 2,169.6 22259
Current portion of long-term debt (972.2) {253.6)
Long-term debt $1,197.4 $1,972.3

The following table summarizes the Company's average commercial paper obligations and interest rate for the year ended December 31,
{in milfions, except percentages):

2m 2006
Borrowing $147.3 $1784
Average interest rate 5.3% 5.0%

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt outstanding, based on the earliest date the obligation may become due, are as follows as of
December 31, 2007 (in millions}:

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total
$972.2 $252.7 $252.4 $2.4 $250.8 $439.1 $2,169.6

The medium-term notes, revolving credit agreement (and related commercial paper), floating rate nate and junior convertible subordinated
debentures are all unsecured.

Medium-Term Notes
in July 1998, the Company issued $250.0 million of medium-term notes. The notes mature in July 2028 and interest is paid semi-annually. The notes have
a coupon rate reset feature through a remarketing agreement that occurs at two ten year intervals, July 2008 and July 2018. The notes currently have a
coupon rate of 6.35% through the first interest reset date of July 2008. In addition, the notes have an embedded call option pursuant to which a third party
may call the debt at par at each ten-year remarketing interval, and the third party would remarket the netes if the call aption is exercised. Should the call
option at each remarketing interval not be exercised, the note hoiders are required to put the notes back to the Company at a price of par. i the third party
exercises the call option, remarketing of the notes will eccur, which may result in the Company paying an increased coupon rate in the future.

1n July 1998, the Company also issued $75.0 million of medium-term notes. The notes mature in July 2028, and interest is paid semi-annually, The
notes have a coupon rate of 6.11%, which is fixed through maturity. The note holders have a put option which entities the holders of the notes to require the
Company to repay the notes at par in July 2008.

The Company has issued three additienal series of medium-term notes with aggregate principal amounts of $250.0 million each. The medium-term
notes have coupon rates ranging from 4% to 6.75% and mature at various dates between 2009 and 2012.

89



Neweli Rubbermaid Inc. 2007 Annual Report

Floating Rate Note

Under a 2001 receivables facility with a financial instifution, the Company created a financing entity that is consolidated in the Company’s financial statements.

Under this facility, the Company regularly enters into transactions with the financing entity to sell an undivided interest in substantially all of the Company’s
U.S. trade receivables to the financing entity, tn 2001, the financing entity issued $450.0 million in preferred debt securities to the financial institution.
Certain levels of accounts receivable write-offs and other events would permit the financial institution to terminate the receivables facility. On September 18,
2006, in accordance with the terms of the receivables facility, the financing entity caused the preferred debt securities to be exchanged for cash of
$2.2 million, a two year floating rate note in an aggregate principal amount of $448.0 million and a cash premium of $5.2 million. Because this debt
matures in 2008, the entire amount is considered to be short-term at December 31, 2007. At any time prior to maturity of the note, the holder may elect to
convert it into new preferred debt securities of the financing entity with a par value equal to the cutstanding principal amount of the note. The note must
be repaid and any preferred debt securities into which the note is converted must be retired or redeemed before the Company can have access to the
financing entity's receivables. As of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the aggregate amount of outstanding receivables sold under this facility
was $643.3 million and $696.7 million, respectively. The receivables and the note are recorded in the conselidated financial statements of the Company.

Junior Convertible Subordinated Debentures

In 1997, a 100% owned finance subsidiary (the “Subsidiary”) of the Company issued 10.0 million shares of 5.25% convertible preferred securities (the
“Preferred Securities”). Holders of the Preferred Securities are entitled to cumuiative cash dividends of 5.25% of the liquidation preference of $50 per
Preferred Security, or $2.625 per year. Each of these Preferred Securities is convertible into 0.9865 of a share of the Company’s commen stock. In 2005 and
2004, the Company purchased 750,000 shares and 825,000 shares, respectively, of its Preferred Securities from holders at an average price of $47.075

per share {$35.3 million) and $43.6875 per share ($36.0 million), respectively. As of December 31, 2007, 3.4 million shares of Preferred Securities were
outstanding which were convertible into 8.3 million shares of the Company’s commen stock. As of December 31, 2007, the Company fully and unconditionally
guarantees 8.4 million shares of the Preferred Securities issued by the Subsidiary, which are callable at 100.0% of the liquidation preference.

The proceeds received by the Subsidiary from the issuance of the Preferred Securities were invested in the Company's 5.25% Junior Convertible
Subordinated Debentures (the “Debentures™). In addition, the Subsidiary received approximately $15.5 million of the Company’s Debentures as payment
for a $15.5 million loan the Company borrowed from the Subsidiary to purchase 100% of the common equity interests in the Subsidiary. As a result, the
Company issued an aggregate of $515.5 million of Debentures, and the Subsidiary is the sole holder of the Debentures. The Debentures are the sole assets
of the Subsidiary, mature on December 1, 2027, bear interest at an annual rate of 5.25%, are payable quarterly and became redeemable by the Company
beginning in December 2001. The Company may defer interast payments on the Debentures for a period of up to 20 consecutive quarters, during which
period distribution payments on the Preferred Securities are also deferred. Under this circumstance, the Company may not declare or pay any cash
distributions with respect to its common or preferred stock or debt securities that do not rank senior to the Debentures. The Preferred Securities are
mandatorily redeemable upon the repayment of the Debentures at maturity or upon acceleration of the Debentures. As of December 31, 2007, the Company
has not elected to defer interest payments. In connection with the Company’s purchase of the Preferred Securities in 2005 and 2004, the Company
negotiated the early retirement of the corresponding Debentures with the Subsidiary. The Company accounted for these transactions as extinguishments of
debt, which resulted in $436.7 miltion of Debentures outstanding as of December 31, 2007. The Company recorded a net gain of $1.7 million in 2005
associated with the 2005 purchases of Preferred Securities, which was ingluded in other expense {income), net.

Terminated Interest Rate Swaps

At December 31, 2007 and 2008, the carrying amount of long-term debt and current maturities thereof includes $8.5 million and $11.9 millien (of which
$2.0 million and $3.4 million is classified as current), respectively, relating to terminated interest rate swap agreements,

FOOTNOTE 11
Derivative Financial Instruments

Interest Rate Risk Management

At December 31, 2007, the Company had interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges with an outstanding notional principal amount of $250.0 million,

with a net accrued interest payable of $0.2 millien. There was $1.2 million of credit exposure on the Company's interest rate derivatives at December 31, 2007.
At December 31, 2007, the Company had long-term cross currency interest rate swaps with an outstanding notional principal amount of $312.4 million,

with a net accrued interest receivable of $1.7 million, The maturities on these lang-term cross currency interest rate swaps are three years,
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Foreign Currency Management

The Company's foreign exchange risk management policy emphasizes hedging anticipated intercompany and third party commercial transaction exposures
of generally ane-year duration or less. The following table summarizes the Company's forward exchange contracts, lang-term cross currency interest rate
swaps and option contracts in U.5. dollars by major currency and contractual amount. The “buy” amounts represent the U.S. equivalent of commitments to
purchase foreign currencies, and the “sell” amounts represent the U.S. equivalent of commitments ta sell foreign currencies according to the local needs of
the subsidiaries. The contractual amounts of significant forward exchange contracts, long-term cross currency interest rate swaps and option contracts
and their fair values as of December 31, were as follows (in milfions):

2007 2006

Buy Sell Buy Sell
British Pounds $485.6 $ 211 $429.8 $ 207.2
Canadian Dollars 1.2 298.7 0.9 263.6
Euro 36 gNn.2 2.5 735.0
Other 40.6 144 21.0 21.6
Contractual Value $531.0 $1,484.0 $454.2 $1.227.4
Fair Yalue $(35.9) $ 367 $ (3.4) $ 0.7

The net loss recognized in 2007, 2006 and 2005 for matured cash flow forward exchange contracts, option contracts and commodity swaps was
$6.6 million, $4.2 million and $4.5 million, net of tax, respectively, which was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Company estimates
that a loss of $1.3 million, net of tax, deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income will be recognized in earnings in 2008.

See Footnote 17 for information regarding the termination of a cross currency interest rate swap.

FOOTNOTE 12
Commitments

Lease Commitments

The Company leases manufacturing, warehouse and ather facilities, real estate, transportation, and data processing and other equipment under leases that
expire at various dates through the year 2020. Rent expense, which is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term, was $90.2 million,
$84.4 mitlion and $103.6 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Future minimurn rental payments for operating leases with initial or remaining terms in excess of one year are as follows as of December 31, 2007 (in miflions):

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total
$81.7 $63.8 $47.3 $35.9 $34.9 $99.5 $363.1

Purchase Obligations

The Company enters into certain obligations to purchase finished goods, raw materials, components and services pursuant to legally enforceable and
binding obligations, which include all significant terms. The Company is alse obligated to purchase the minority interest of a majority owned subsidiary
in 2009, the estimated purchase price of which is included in the purchase obligations amount shown in the table below.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company's future estimated total purchase obligations are as follows (/n milligns):

2008 2009 Total
$275.8 $30.5 $306.3
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FOOTNOTE 13
Employee Benefit and Retirement Plans

Effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans— an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)" (“SFAS 1587). SFAS 158 reguired the Company
to recognize the funded status (i.e., the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligations) of its pension plans in the
consolidated balance sheet, with a cerresponding adjustment of $32.4 million to accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax. The adjustment to
accumulated other comprehensive loss at adoption represented the net unrecognized actuarial losses, unrecognized prior service costs, and unrecognized
transitign abligation remaining from the initial adoption of SFAS Mo. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions™ {SFAS 87). further, actuarial gains and losses
in subsequent periods that are nat recognized as net periodic pension cost will be recognized as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss,
net of tax. Those amounts will be subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost on the same basis as the amounts recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive toss upon adoption of SFAS 158, SFAS 158 also requires the measurement of defined benefit plan assets and obligations
as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year end statement of financial position beginning December 31, 2008. The Company has historically measured
defined benefit plan assets and liabilities for the majority of its plans on September 30 and has adopted the measurement date provisians of SFAS 158
beginning January 1, 2008. The impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the adoption of the change in measurement date to December 31 will
resull in an adjustment to beginning retained earnings that is not material,

Ingluded in accumutated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2007 is $314.3 million ($202.4 millien net of tax) related to net unrecognized
actuarial losses and unrecognized prior service credit that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension or benefit cost. The Company expects to
recognize $9.8 million ($6.4 million net of tax) of costs in 2008 associated with net actuarial losses and prior service credit.

Effective December 31, 2004, the Company froze its defined benefit pension plan for its entire non-union U.S. workforce. As a result of this curtailment,
the Company reduced its pension obligation by $50.3 million and recorded a curtailment gain related to negative prior service cost in 2005 of $15.8 mitlion.
In conjunction with this action, the Company offered special termination benefits to certain employees who accepted early retirement. The Company
replaced the defined benefit pension ptan with an additional defined contribution benefit, whereby the Company wili make additional cantributions to the
Company sponsored profit sharing plan. The new defined contribution ptan has a three year cliff-vesting schedule, but allows credit for sefvice rendered
prior to the inception of the defined contribution benefit arrangement. The Cempany recorded $19.9 miltion, $19.6 millicn and $21.4 million in expense
for the defined contribution benefit arrangement for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The liability associated with the
defined contribution benefit arrangement as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 s $19.9 million and $19.6 million, respectively, and is included in other
atcrued liabilities on the Consolidated Batance Sheets.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company maintained various non-qualified deferred compensation plans with varying terms. The total
liability associated with these plans was $77.8 miltion and $75.1 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These liabilities are included in
other noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These plans are partially funded with asset balances of $44.1 million and $38.9 million
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These assets are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP"), which is a nonqualified defined benefit plan pursuant to which the
Company will pay supplemental pension benefits to certain key employees upon retirement based upon the employees' years of service and compensation.
The SERP is partially funded through a trust agreement with the Northern Trust Company, as trustee, that owns life insurance palicies on key employees.
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the iife insurance contracts had a cash surrender value of $78.8 million and $77.7 million, respectively. These assets are
included in other assets in the Consalidated Balance Sheets. The projected benefit obligation was $85.1 million and $78.2 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. The SERP liabilities are included in the pension table below; however, the Company's investment in the life insurance contracts is
exciuded from the table as they do not qualify as plan assets under SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions.”

The Company and its subsidiaries have noncontributory pension, profit sharing and contributory 4G1(k) plans cevering substantially all of their foreign
and domestic employees. Plan benefits are generally based on years of service and/or compensation. The Company's funding palicy is to contribute not less
than the minimum amounts required by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
or foreign statutes to assure that plan assets will be adequate to provide retirement benefits.

The Company's matching centributions to the contributory 401(k) plans were $15.6 million, $15.9 million, and $15.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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The Company used a September 30 measurement date for the majority of its pension ptans in 2007 and 2006. The following provides a reconciliation of

benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of the Company's ngncontributory define benefit pension plans, including the SERP, as of December 31,
(in millions, except percentages):

us. International
2007 2006 2007 2006
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at January 1 $ 855.8 $ 896.4 $ 543.7 $482.5
Service cost is 2.8 13 7.3
Interest cost 51.2 51.4 21.1 24.5
Contsibutions — — 0.8 —_
Amendments 1.6 0.4 - —
Actuarial loss (gain} 18.8 (38.8} 0.4 (6.0)
Acquisitions and other - - (0.9) (4.4
Currency translation — — 19.8 6a.7
Benefits paid {62.5) (56.5} (24.4) (24.9)
Curtailments, settlement costs — 0.1 (5.5) —
Benefit obtigation at December 31 % 868.6 $ 8558 $ 568.8 $543.7
Change it plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at lanuary 1 $ 7114 $ 693.7 $ 410.7 $ 3405
Actual retum on plan assets 103.3 68.0 28.8 26.9
Acquisitions and other — — — (Lh
Contributions 11.6 6.2 29.7 21.1
Currency translation — — 10.8 48.3
Benefits paid {62.6) (56.5) (24.4) {24.9)
Settlement charges and other — — (2.3} (0.1)
Fair value of plan assets at Decemper 31 $ 763.7 $7114 $ 4533 $ 4107
Funded status at December 31 $(104.9) $(144.4) $(115.9) $(133.0)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Prepaid benefit cost s — 3 — $ 13 $ 57
Accrued current benefit cost® {6.7) (6.5) 4.2) {(3.8)
Accrued moncurrent benefit cost® {98.2) {137.9) {113.2) (134.9)
Total $(104.9) $i144.4) $(115.5) $(133.0)
Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Prior service cost $ (14.1) $ (137 $ - 5 -
Net loss (215.5) (248.9) {95.6) (100.1)
Accumulated sther comprehensive loss, pre-tax $(229.5) $(262.5) $ (95.6) $(100.1)
Accumulated benefit gbligation $ 861.9 $845.7 4 556.4 $ 5309

(1) Recorded in other assets.
{2)  Recorded in other accrued liabilities.
(3} Record in other noncurrent liabilities.
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us. International
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligation:
Discount rate 6.25% 6.00% 3.53% 511%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 5.89% 6.69%
Long-term rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.50% 4.24% 3.90%
Net pension cost (benefit) includes the following components for the years ended December 31, (in miffions):
U.s. International
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Service cost-benefits earned during the year $ 38 $ 28 $ 2.2 $ 13 $ 73 $ 78
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 51.2 514 51.7 .1 24.5 235
Expected return on plan assets {58.6) (59.5) (64.6) (21.4) (24.7) (21.0}
Amartization of:
Prior service cost 11 1.0 11 - e —
Actuarial loss 16 7.8 49 45 19 39
Curtailment, settlement and special
termination benefit costs — 0.2 {16.9) (2.8) — {0.8)
Net pension cost (benefit) $ 5.1 $ 37 ${21.2) $ 93 $12.0 $13.4
us. international
200 2006 2 2006
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 6.00% 5.75% 5.16% 4.90%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 6.33% 6.91%
Long-term rate of compensation increase 4.50% 4.50% 3.85% 371%

The Company’s defined benefit pension plan weighted-average asset allocation at December 31, 2007 and 2006, by asset category, are as follows:

U.s. International
2007 2006 2007 2006
Equity securities 69.1% 65.6% 21.8% 51.5%
Debt securities 20.5% 22.9% 52.5% A0.4%
Real estate 45% 4.5% 24% 2.0%
Cash and other 5.9% 71.0% 23.3% 6.1%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The Company emplays a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equities and fixed income investments is used to maximize the long-term
return of plan assets for a prudent Jevel of risk. Risk tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status, and
corparate financial conditien. The investment portfolio is comprised of a diversified blend of equity, real estate, fixed income investments, and cash
investments. Equity investments include large and smatl market capitalization stocks as well as growth, value and international stock positions.

The Company employs a building block approach in determining the long-term rate of return for plan assets. Historical markets are studied and long-
term historical relationships between equities and fixed-income are preserved consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with
higher volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors, such as inflation and interest rates, are evatuated before long-term
capital market assumptions are determined. The long-term portfolio return is established via a building block approach with proper consideration of
diversification and rebalancing. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to check for reasonableness and appropriateness.

The Company expects to make cash contributions of approximately $23.8 million to its defined benefit pension plans in 2008.
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Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

Several of the Company’s subsidiaries currently provide retiree health care and life insurance benefits for certain employee groups. The following
provides a reconciliation of benefit ebligations and funded status of the Company's other postretirement benefit plans as of December 31, (in millions,
excepf percentages):

2007 2006
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of plan year $ 1787 $ 1734
Service cost 1.7 26
Interest cost 10.7 10.0
Actuarial (gain) loss {8.6) 16.5
Benefits paid (18.0) {23.8)
Benefit obligation at end of pian year $ 164.5 $178.7
Funded Status:
Funded status at end of plan year $(164.5) $(178.7)
Contributions made between measurement date and December 31 4.0 5.8
Net liability recognized at December 31 ${160.5) $(172.9)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Accrued current benefit cost™ $(17.6) % (18.4)
Accrued noncurrent benefit cost® (142.9) {154.5)
Total $(160.5) $(172.9)
Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Prior service credit $ 2.2 $ 236
Net loss {10.3) (18.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, pre-tax $ 109 $ 47

(1) Recorded in other accrued liabilities.
(2)  Recorded in other noncursent liabilities.

There are no plan assets associated with the Company's other postretirement benefit plans.

The weighted average discount rate at the measurement dates for the Company's other postretirement benefit plans is developed using a spot
interest yield curve based upon a bread population of corporate bonds rated AA or higher, adjusted to match the duration of each plan’s benefits. The
following are the weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the other postretirement benefit plans:

2007 2006
Discount rate 6.00% 5.75%
Long-term heaith care cost trend rate 6.00% 6.00%
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{Other postretirement henefit costs include the following components as of December 31, U miflions):

2007 2006 2005
Service cost-benefits earned during the year $ 17 $ 26 $38
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 10.7 10.0 136
Amortization of:
Prior service benefit (2.4) (2.4 {2.4)
Actuarial foss 0.1 - 13
Curtailments —_ (0.1} —
Net postretirement benefit costs $10.1 $10.1 $16.3

Assumed health care cost trends have been used in the valuation of the benefit obligations for postretirement benefits. The trend rate used to
measure the benefit obligation was 9% for all retirees in 2007, declining by 0.5% each year to 5% in 2016 and thereatter.

The health care cost trend rate significantly affects the reported postretirement benefit costs and obligations. A one-percentage point change
in the assumed rate would have the following effects (/i miffions):

1% Increase 1% Decrease
Etfect on total of service and interest cost components $ 11 $ (1.0)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligations $11.8 $(10.5)

Estimated future benefit payments under the Company's defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefit plans are as follows
as of December 31, 2007 (in millions):

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013-2017
Pension Benefits™ $75.7 $76.8 $78.6 $80.6 $83.4 $464.0
Other Postretirement Benefits $17.6 $16.9 $164 $15.9 $15.2 $69.8

(1} Certain pension benedit payments will be funded by nlan assets.

The estimated other postretirement benefit payments are net of annual Medicare Part D subsidies of approximately $2.2 million per year.
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FOOTNOTE 14
Earnings per Share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31 is shown below (i milligns, except per share data):

2007 2006 2005
Nuimerator for basic earnings per share:
income from continuing operations $479.2 $470.7 $ 4063
Loss from discontinued operations {12.1) {85.7) {155.0)
Net income for basic eamings per share $461.1 $385.0 $ 2513
Numerator for diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations $419.2 $470.7 $406.3
Effect of convertible preferred securities, net of tax® 14.2 — —
Income from continuing operations for diluted earnings per share 4934 470.7 406.3
Loss from discontinued operations (12.1) {85.7) (155.0)
Net income for diluted earnings per share $481.3 $385.0 $ 2513
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share —weighted-average shares 27160 2746 2144
Dilutive securities® 18 0.9 0.5
Convertible preferred securities™ 8.3 — —
Denominator for diluted earnings per share 286.1 275.5 2749
Basic earnings (foss) per share: Earnings from continuing operations $ 1L $ 1N $ 148
Loss fram discontinued operations (0.04) 0.31) {0.56)
Eamings per share $ 1.69 $ 140 $ 0.92
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings from continuing operations $ 112 $ 1N $ 148
Loss from discontinued operations (0.04) {0.31) {0.56}
Earnings per share $ 1.68 $ 140 $ 091

{1} The convertitle preferred securities are anti-dilutive for 2006 and 2005, and therefore have been excluded from diluted earnings per share, Had the convertible preferred securities been
inctuded in the diluted earnings per share calculation, net income would be increased by $14.2 million and $14.4 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively. Weighted average shares outstanding
would have increased by 8.3 million shares and &.4 million shares for 2006 and 2005, respectively,

{2} Dilutive securities include “in the money options™ and restricted stock awards. The weighted-average shares outstanding for 2007, 2006 and 2005 exclude the effect of approximately
9.5 millian, 11.1 million and 9.6 million stock options, respectively, because such options were anti-dilutive.
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FOOTNOTE 15
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company offers stock-based compensation to its employees that includes stock options, restricted stock awards, performance share awards and an
employee stock purchase plan, as follows:

Stock Options

The Company’s stock plans include plans adopted in 1993 and 2003. The Company has issued both non-qualified and incentive stock aptions at exercise
prices equal to the Company's commaon stock price on the date of grant with contractual terms of ten years that generally vest and are expensed ratably
over five years. Stock option grants are generally subject to forfeiture if employment terminates prior to vesting.

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock awards are independent of stock eption grants and are subject to forfeiture if empleyment terminates prior to vesting. The awards generally
cliff-vest three years from the date of grant. Prior to vesting, ownership of the shares cannot be transferred. The restricted stock has the same dividend and
voting rights as the common stock. The Company expenses the cost of these awards ratably over the vesting period.

Performance Shares

Performance share awards issued under the 2003 Stock Plan represent the right to receive unrestricted shares of stock based on the achievement of
Company performance objectives and/or individual performance goals established by the Organizational Development & Compensation Committee and the
Board of Directors. The Company awarded performance shares in February 2007 based on 2006 performance and awarded performance shares in 2006
related to a transition grant as the Company moved to a new cash bonus structure,

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company established an Employee Stack Purchase Plan (“ESPP") effective August 1, 2006. The ESPP allows all employees the ability to purchase shares
of the Company's $1.60 par value per share common stock at a 5% discount at the end of each quarter. Pursuant to the ESPP, $0.9 million of shares were
purchased during 2007.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense by applying the intrinsic value method in accordance with APB 25,
Under APB 25, the Company generally recognized compensation expense only for restricted stock grants. The Company recognized the compensation
expense associated with the restricted stock ratably over the associated service period.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method, and therefore has
not restated the results of prior periods. Under this transition method, stock-based compensation expense for 2007 and 2006 includes (i} compensation
expense for al) stock-based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated
in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatien,” and {ii) compensation expense for 2/l share-based
payment awards granted after January 1, 2006 based on estimated grant-date fair values estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R}.

The table below highlights the expense retated to share-based payments for the years ended December 31, (in miffions):

2007 2006 2005

Stock options $11.2 $17.8 $0.4

Restricted stock 18.2 143 51

Performance shares — 11.9 —

Stock-based compensation $36.4 $44.0 $6.1
Stack-based compensation, net of income tax benefit of $13.8 miltion, $16.7 million

and $2.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively $22.6 $21.3 $3.8
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The fair value of stock option awards granted during the years ended December 31, was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with

the following weighted average assumptions:

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate 4.1% 16% 3.9%
Dividend yield 2.8% 3.0% 3.0%
Expected volatility 5% 33% 3%
Expected life (in years) 5.5 6.5 6.5

The Company utilized its historical experience to estimate the expected life of the options and volatility.
The following summarizes the changes in the number of shares of common stock under eption for the following periods (shares and aggregate intrinsic

value in millions):
Weighted Weighted
Weighted  Exercisable Average  AverageFairValue  Aggregate
Average at End Exercise  of Options Granted Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price of Year Price During the Year Value
Qutstanding at December 31, 2004 115 $28 5.0 $30
Granted 3.2 23 $6
Exercised — 23 $ —
Forfeited / expired (L5 29
Qutstanding at December 31, 2005 13.2 $27 58 $29
Granted 32 25 $7
Exercised (0.8) 24 $35
Forfeited / expired (1.5} 27
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 14.1 $26 6.8 $28 $52.2
Granted 43 30 $7
Exercised (0.9) 25 $ 34
Forfeited / expired (1.5} 29
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 16.0 $21 1.3 $21 $19.7
Vested and expected to vest at December 31,2007  12.8 427

At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable options was $9.2 million.

Options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2007 are as follows {shares in millions):

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisabie

Weighted  Weighted Average Weighted Weighted Average

Number Average Remaining Number Average femaining

Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding  Exercise Price Contractual Life Exercisable  Exercise Price  Contractual Life
$19.00 - $22.49 20 $22 6.9 0.8 $22 6.9
$22.50-$27.49 6.9 24 6.3 36 24 48
$27.50-$34.99 6.1 30 11 19 30 49
$35.00 - $50.00 1.0 38 2.5 1.0 38 25
$19.00 - $50.00 16.0 $27 6.5 7.3 $27 4.7
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The following table summarizes the changes in the number of shares of restricted stock fer the following periods (shares in milfions):

Weighted-Average

Shares Grant-Date Fair Valug
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 04 $23
Granted 0.7 22
Forfeited 0.1 24
Qutstanding at December 31, 2005 10 $23
Granted 15 24
Farfeited (0.3} 24
Qutstanding at December 31, 2006 22 $24
Granted 1.2 30
Vested (0.5} 23
Forfeited (0.3) 24
Dutstanding at December 31, 2007 26 $25
Expected to vest at December 31, 2007 24 $26

The following table summarizes the Company's total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock-based compensation as of December 31, 2007

{in miflions}
Weighted Average Period
Unrecognized of Expense Recognition
Compensation Cost (in years}
Stock options $47.9 2
Restricted stock 34.4 ?
Total $82.3
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FOOTNOTE 16
Income Taxes

The Cempany adopted the provisions of FIN 48, on January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not result in an adjustment to beginning retained earnings.
However, the adoption of FIN 48 did result in the reclassification of certain income tax assets and liabilities frem current to long-term in the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

As of January 1, 2007, the Company had unrecagnized tax benefits of $161.8 million, of which $160.7 miltion, if recognized, would affect the effective tax
rate. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $145.8 million, all of which, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate.
The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. As of December 31,
2007 and January 1, 2007, the Company had recorded accrued interest expense related to the unrecognized tax benefits of up to $18.6 million and $12.6 miflion,
respectively. Due to statute expirations and examinations by various worldwide taxing authorities, $18.8 miltion of the unrecognized tax benefits could
reasonahly change in the coming year.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits, including interest, is as follows (in millions):

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at January 1, 2007 $161.8
Increases in tax positions for prior years 29.6
Decreases in tax positions for prior years 1.3
Increases in tax positions for current year 19.2
Settlements with taxing authorities (34.9)
Lapse of statute of limitations (28.5)
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31, 2007 $145.8

The provision for income taxes consists of the following as of December 31, {in mififons):

2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal $ 813 $ 8.8 $29.7
State 4.0 1.0 5.4
Foreign 66.7 67.2 50.1
Total current 152.0 59.4 85.2
Deferred (2.3) (15.2) (28.1)
Total provision $149.7 $44.2 $57.1

The non-U.S. component of income from continuing operations before income taxes was $223.4 million in 2007, $231.2 milfion in 2006, and
$201.4 million in 2005.
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A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005
Statutory rate 35.0% 35.0%
Add (deduct} effect of:
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect 01 08
Foreign tax credit (1.5) (0.3}
Foreign rate differential and other (5.1) {9.0)
Resolutien of tax contingencies {4.8) {15.9)
Tax basis differential on goodwill impairment — 1.7
Impact of legal entity restructuring {15.1) —
Effective rate 8.6% 12.3%

The Company files numeraus consolidated and separate income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions.
The statute of limitations for the Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns has expired for years prior to 2004, and the Internal Revenuz Service (“IRS”)
has completed its examination of the Company's 2004 federal income tax return. The Company’s Canadian income tax returns are subject to examination

for years after 2000. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to other income tax examinations for years before 2004.

At December 31, 2007, the Company had foreign net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards of approximately $619.5 million, most of which carryforward
without expiratien. The potential tax benefits associated with those foreign NOLs are approximately $201.8 mitlion. The valuation allowance on NOLs decreased

$10.1 million during 2007 to $199.8 million at December 31, 2007. This decrease is primarily dug to foreign NOLs utilized during the year.
The components of net deferred tax assets are as follows as of December 31, (in millions):

2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:
Accruals not currently deductible for tax purposes $ 1321 $ 14456
Postretirement liabilities 62.9 65.0
Inventory reserves 20 11.9
Pension liabilities 62.4 86.4
Self-insurance liability 13 87
Foreign net operating losses 201.8 2144
Other 155.3 322

Total gross deferred tax assets 624.4 563.2
Less valuation allowance (272.6) (246.4)

Net deferred tax assets after valuation allowance $351.8 $316.8
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accelerated depreciation $ (68.9) $ (71.5)
Amortizable intangibles (146.1} (127.0)
Other {5.4) (4.9

Total gross deferred tax liabilities {220.4) (205.4)
Net deferred tax assets $1314 $1114
Current deferred income tay assets $102.0 $110.1
Noncurrent deferred income tax assets 294 1.3

$1314 $111.4

No U.S. deferred taxes have been provided on the endistributed non-U.S. subsidiary earnings that are considered to be indefinitely invested.

At December 31, 2007, the estimated amount of total unremitted non-U.S. subsidiary earnings is $544.6 million.
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Resolution of Tax Contingencies

2007
In 2007, the Company recorded a benefit of $35.0 million due to the Company entering into an agreement with the IRS relating to the appropriate treatment
of a specific deduction included in the Company's 2006 U.S. federal income tax return, The Company requested accelerated review of the transaction under
the IRS" Pre-Filing Agreement Program that resuited in affirmative resolutian in 2007,

The Company recorded a $4.4 million net benefit due to certain accrual reversals for which the statute of limitations has expired partially offset by
provisions required for tax deductions recorded in prior periods.

The Company recorded a benefit of $1.9 million due to the receipt of an income tax refund, resulting in a reduction in the valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets.

2006
In 2006, the Company determined that it would be able to utilize certain capital loss carryforwards that it previously believed would expire unused. Accordingly,
the Company reversed an income tax valuation reserve of $3.6 million.
The Company completed the reorganization of certain legal entities in Europe which resulted in the recognition of an income tax henefit of $78.0 million.
In 2006, the statute of limitations on cerlain tax pasitions for which the Company had provided tax reserves, in whole or in part, expired resulting
in the reversal of the provisions and interest accrued thereon in the amount of $21.2 million.

2005
in January 2005, the Company reached agreement with the IRS relating to the appropriate treatment of a specific deduction included in the Company's
2003 U.S. federal income tax return. The Company requested accelerated review of the transaction under the IRS' Pre-Filing Agreement Program that
tesulted in affirmative resolution in late January 2005. A $58.6 million benefit was recorded in incame taxes for 2005 related to this issue.

In 2005, the statute of limitations on certain tax positions for which the Company had provided tax reserves, in whole or in part, expired resulting in
the reversal of the provisions and interest accrued thereon in the amount of $15.3 million.

FOOTNOTE 17
Other Expense (Income), Net

Other expense (income), net consists of the following for the years ended December 31, (in milfions):

2007 2006 2005
Equity earnings $(0.1) $(0.9) $ (09
Minority interest 3.1 36 28
Currency transaction loss 4.2 3.0 0.3
Gain on disposal of fixed assets — — {14.3)
Liquidation of foreign entity™ - — {10.3)
Gain an debt extinguishment® - — (1.7}
Other 0.1 40 15

$7.3 $9.7 $(23.1)

(1) InDecember 2005, the Company liquidated a foreign subsidiary and terminated a ¢ross currency interest rate swap that was designated as a hedge of the Company's net investment in the
subsidiary. In connection with these actions, the Company recognized a net gain of $10.3 miltion in other income. The cash paid to terminate the swap was reflected in Other in the Company's
cash flow from gperations,

{2) See Footnote 10 for further information regarding debt extinguishment.
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FOOTNOTE 18
Industry Segment Information

The Company's reporting segments reflect the Company’s focu§ on building large consumer brands, promoting organizational integration, achieving
operating efficiencies in sourcing and distribution and leveraging its understanding of similar consumer segments and distribution chaanels. The
reportable segments are as follows:

Segment Description of Products

Cleaning, Organization & Décor  Material handling, cleaning, refuse, indoar/outdoor organization, home storage, food storage, drapery hardware,
window treatments

Office Products Ball point/rolter ball pens, markers, highlighters, pencils, correction fluids, office products, art supplies, on-demand
labeling products, card-scanning solutions, on-line pestage

Taals & Hardware Hand tools, power tool accessories, manual paint applicators, cabinet, window and convenience hardware, propane
torches, soldering tools and accessories

Other (Home & Family) Premium cookware and related kitchenware, beauty and style accessory products, infant and juvenile products,

including high chairs, car seats, strollers and play yards, and other products within operating segments that are
individually immaterial and do not meet aggregation criteria
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The Company's segment results are as follows as of and for the years ended December 31, (in millions).

2007 2006 2005
Net Sales™
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $2,096.4 $1,995.7 $1,921.0
Office Products 2,0423 2,031.6 1,713.3
Tools & Hardware 1,288.7 1,262.2 1,260.3
Other (Home & Family) 979.9 911.5 822.6
$6,407.3 $6,201.0 $5,717.2
Operating Income®
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $ 2733 $ 2091 $ 1458
Office Products ns 287.0 266.0
Tools & Hardware 181.5 185.0 1711
Other (Home & Family) 135.6 117.9 1035
Corporate (82.0) (76.0} (46.0)
Impairment Charges - — (0.4}
Restructuring Costs (86.0) (66.4} (72.6)
$ 1403 § 656.6 $ 5674
Depreciation & Amortization
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $ 5718 $ 679 $ 852
Office Products 52.2 55.9 46.7
Tools & Hardware 336 34.2 317
Other (Home & Family) 101 117 14.1
Corporate 23.3 23.6 13.9
$ 1.0 $ 1933 $ 1916
Capital Expenditures®
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $ 408 $ 221 $ 220
Office Products 254 29.7 24.0
Tools & Hardware 131 15.6 185
Other (Home & Family) 9.3 1.7 73
Corporate 68.7 62.1 1.8
$ 1573 $ 1372 $ 736
Identifiable Assets
Cleaning, Organization & Décor $ 7853 $ 7884
Otfice Products 1,352.7 1,264.6
Tools & Hardware 1122 712.7
Other (Home & Family) 3446 293.7
Corporate*® 34881 3,183.0
Discontinued Operations - 68.1

$6.682.9 $6,310.5
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Geagraphic Area Information

2007 2006 2005
Net Sales
Us. $4,624.3 $4,603.4 $4,3385
Canada 425.7 3879 352.2
North America 5,050.0 49913 4,690.7
Europe 879.5 781.0 639.8
Central and South America 250.2 239.3 2248
Qther 221.6 189.4 161.9
$6,407.3 $6,201.0 $5,717.2
Operating Income #
us. $ 5724 $ 5174 $ 4349
Canada 108.5 78.8 65.8
North America 680.9 596.2 500.7
Europe 1049 154 24.0
Central and South America 1na 53 12.9
Other 36.6 39.7 29.8
$ 7403 $ 656.6 $ 5674
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Us. $ 4795 $ 5335
Canada 15.7 14.8
North America 495.2 548.3
Europe 1211 123.7
Central and South America 307 K1
Cther 41.6 438
$ 6386 $ 7469

{1

All intercompany transactions have been eliminated. Sales to Wal-Mart Stoves, Inc. ard subsidiaries amounted to approximately 13%, 12% and 13% of consolidated net sales for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, substantially across alt segments. Safes to no other customer exceeded 10% of consolidated net sales for any year,

(2

Operating income is net sales less cost of products scld and selling, general and administrative expenses. Certain headquarters expenses of an operational nature are aflocated to business
segments and geographic areas primarily on a net sales basis.

3
0
5

Capital expenditures associated with discontinued businesses have been excluded. Corporate capital expenditures in 2007 2nd 2006 are mainly related to the SAP implementation.

Corporate assets primarily include tradenames and goodwill, capitalized software, equity investments and deferred tax assets.

The restructuring and impairment charges have been reflecied in the appropriate geographic regions.

FOOTNOTE 19
Litigation and Contingencies

The Company is involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. These proceedings include claims for damages arising out of use of
the Company’s products, allegations of infringement of intellectual property, commercial disputes and employment matters as well as environmental
matters described below. Some of the legal proceedings incluede claims for punitive as well as compensatory damages, and certain proceedings purport
to be class actions.

The Company, using current product sales data and historical trends, actuariatly calculates the estimate of its exposure for product kiability. As a
result of the most recent analysis, the Company has product liability reserves of $34.4 miltion as of December 31, 2007. The Company is insured far product
liability claims for amounts in excess of established deductibles and accrues for the estimated liability as described up to the limits of the deductibles.

All other claims and lawsuits are handled on a case-by-case basis.

On July 1, 2007, the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity interest of PSI System, Inc. (“Endicia”), provider of Endicia Internet Postage,
for $51.2 million plus related acquisition costs and cantingent payments of up to $25.0 million based on future revenues. Endicia is party to a lawsuit filed
against it alleging patent infringement. In this case, Stamps.com seeks injunctive relief in order to prevent Endicia from continuing to engage in activities
that are alleged to infringe on Stamps.com's patents, An unfavorable outcome in this litigation, which management does not believe is probable, could
materially adversely affect the Endicia business.
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As of December 31, 2007, the Company was involved in various matters concerning federal and state environmental laws and regulations, including
matters in which the Company has been identified by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and certain state environmental agencies as a potentially
responsible party (“PRP”) at contaminated sites under the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA")
and eguivalent state laws.

In assessing its enviranmental respense costs, the Company has considered several factors, including the extent of the Cempany's volumetric
contribution at each site relative to that of other PRPs; the kindg of waste; the terms of existing cost sharing and other applicable agreements; the financial
ability of other PRPs to share in the payment of requisite costs; the Company’s prior experience with similar sites; environmental studies and cost estimates
available to the Company; the effects of inflation on cost estimates; and the extent to which the Company’s, and other parties’, status as PRPs is disputed.

The Company's estimate of environmental response costs associated with these matters as of December 31, 2007 ranged between $14.5 million and
$33.9 million. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had a reserve equal to $18.8 million for such envirenmental response costs in the aggregate, which is
included in other accrued liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. No insurance recovery was taken into account in
determining the Company's cost estimates or raserve, nor do the Company's cost estimates or reserve reflect any discounting for present value purposes,
except with respect to four long-term (30 year) operations and maintenance CERCLA matters which are estimated at their present value of $8.6 million.

Because of the uncertainties associated with environmental investigations and response activities, the possibility that the Company could be identified
as a PRP at sites identified in the future that require the incurrence of environmental response costs and the possibility that sites acquired in business
combinations may require environmental response costs, actual costs te be incurred by the Company may vary from the Campany's estimates.

Altheugh management of the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these legal proceedings with certainty, including the items discussed
above, it believes that the ultimate resolution of the Company's legal proceedings, including any amounts it may be required to pay in excess of amounts
reserved, will not have a material effect on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

In the narmal course of business and as part of its acquisition and divestiture strategy, the Company may provide certain representations and
indemnifications related to legal, envirenmental, praduct liahility, tax or other types of issues. Based on the nature of these representations and
indemnifications, it is not possible to predict the maximum potential payments under all of these agreements due to the conditional nature of the
Company's obligations and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement, Historically, payments made by the Company
under these agreements did not have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial cendition or results of aperations.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $87.6 miflion in standby letters of credit primarily related to the Company’s self-insurance programs,
including workers’ compensation, product liability, and medical.

FOOTNOTE 20
Subsequent Events

On February 21, 2008, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire substantially ali of the assets of Aprica Childcare Institute Aprica Kassai,
Inc. (“Aprica”), a leading maker of strollers, car seats and other children's products, headquartered in Qsaka, fapan. Complementing the Company’s Graco
brand and its recent acquisition of Germany's Teutonia, the addition of Aprica would give the Company strong brands and distribution channels in Asia
Pacific, Europe and North America. For the most recent fiscal year ended July 31, 2007, Aprica reported net sales of approximately $122 million (unaudited).
The transaction, which is subject to certain custemary and other closing conditions, is expected to close in the first half of 2008.

On February 27, 2008, the Company announced that it had entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Technical Concepts Holdings, LLC,
{"Technical Concepts”), a leading global provider of innovative hygiene systems for several high-growth segments of the away-from-home washroom
category for approximately $445 million, subject to post-closing adjustments for working capital and other matters. For the year ended December 31, 2007,
Technical Concepts reported net sales of approximately $137 million (unaudited). The transaction, which is subject ta regulatory approval and customary
closing conditions, is expected to close in the first half of 2008.
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COMMON STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following commaon stock price performance graph compares the yearly change in the Company's cumulative total stockholder returns on its common
stock during the years 2003 through 2007, with the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index and the Dow Jones Consumer Goods Index,
assuming the investment of $100 on December 31, 2002 and the reinvestment of dividends {rounded to the nearest dollar).

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—— Newell Rubbermaid Ing.  ----@---- S&P 500 Index - - &~ - DJ Consumer Goods Index
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Newell Rubbermaid Inc. 100 7157 85.41 87.09 109.41 100.72
S&P 500 Index 100 128.68 142,69 149.70 173.34 182.86
D Cansumer Goods Index 100 124.30 140.49 143.36 164.74 180.70
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NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE CERTIFICATIONS

The certifications of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have been included as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to the 2007 Form 10-K,

as required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In addition, in 2007, the Company's Chief Executive Officer provided to the New York Stock Exchange the annual
Chief Executive Officer certification regarding the Company’s compliance with the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate governance listing standards.

MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company's commen stock is listed on the New Yark and Chicago Stock Exchanges (symbol: NWL}. As of January 31, 2008, there were 16,444 stockholders

of record. The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of the common stock on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape (as published

in The Wall Street Joumnal) for the calendar periods indicated:

2007 2006
Quarters High Low High Low
First $32.00 $26.66 $26.35 $23.25
Second 219 28.80 28,63 24.35
Third 29.88 1.22 29.25 24,04
Fourth 29.50 24569 29.98 21.75

The Company has paid regular cash dividends on its common stock since 1947, The quarterly cash dividend has heen $0.21 per share since February 1,
2000. The Company currently expects that comparable cash dividends will continue to be paid to holders of the Company's common stock in the future.
However, the payment of dividends to hotders of the Company's commen stock remains at the discretion of the Board ot Directors and will depend upon
many factors, including the Company's financial condition, earnings, legal requirements and other factors the Board of Directors deems retevant.
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RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Operating Income, Excluding Charges

2005 2006 2007
Operating Income As Reported $567.4 $ 656.6 $ 7403
Add: Restructuring and other charges $ 516 $ 664 $ 860
Operating Income, Excluding Charges $619.0 $ 7230 $ 8263
Net Sales $6,201.0 $6,407.3
Operating Income % of Sales 117% 12.9%
“Normalized” EPS

2005 2006 2007
Diluted earnings per share from centinuing operations {as reportad) $1.48 $171 $1.712
Project Acceleration Restructuring costs $0.12 $0.17 $0.25
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations {excluding charges) $1.60 $1.288 $197
One time events:
Tax Benefit $(0.27) $(0.36) $(0.15)
Liguidation of a Foreign Entity $10.03) — -
Stock Options $(0.05) — -
Pension Curtailment/Other $0.05) - -
Restructuring Classified as Continuing Income $0.05 — —_
"Normalized™ EPS $1.25 $1.52 $182
Return On Invested Capital (ROIC)

2005 2006 2007
Numerator:
Operating Income As Reported $ 5674 $ 656.6 $ 7403
Add: Restructuring and Other Charges $§ 516 $ 664 $ 86.0
QOperating Income, Excluding Charges $ 619.0 $ 7230 $ 8263
Adjusted Tax Rate™ 29.1% 28.4% 29.0%
After-tax Operating Income $ 4389 $ 5177 $ 586.7
Denominator:
Average Invested Capital® $4,243.6 $4,291.7 $4,276.5
Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) 10.3% 12.1% 13.7%
Change versus prior year +180bps +160bps

{}) One-time net tax benefiis of $73.9 million, $102.8 mitlion, and $41.3 million are excluded from the adjusted tax rate calculation tor 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

[2) Average invested capital includes notes payable, current portion of long-term debt, long-term debt, and stockholders’ equily calculated as an average of the five most recent quarter-end batances,
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Corporate Information

Brand Web Directory
amerock.com
bernzomatic.com
calphalon.com

cardscan.com

fenoxtoois.com
fevolor.com
papermate.com
parkerpens.com

dymo.com rolodex.com

expocolors.com rubbermaid.com

goody.com rubbermaidcommercial.com
gracobaby.com sharpie.com

irwin.com shurline.com

kirsch.com waterman.com

Trading Information

Newell Rubbermaid is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol NWL. Additional copies of this annual report, Newell Rubbermaid’s
Form 10-K and proxy statement filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, dividend reinvestment plan information, recent and historical
financial data and other information about Newell Rubbermaid are available
without charge to interested stockholders upon request.

Contact Information
All requests and inquiries should be directed to:

Newell Rubbermaid Inc.

Investor Relations

108 Glenlake Parkway, Suite 300
Atlanta, GA 30328

(800) 424-1941
investor.relations@newellco.com
www.newelirubbermaid.com

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on Tuesday,
May 6, 2008, at 9:00 a.m. ET at:

The Westin Atlanta Perimeter North
Seven Concourse Parkway

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Phone: (770) 395-3900

Stockholder Account Maintenance

Communications concerning the transfer of shares, lost certificates, dividends,
dividend reinvestment, receipt of multiple dividend checks, duplicate mailings
or change of address should be directed to the Transfer Agent and Registrar:

Computershare Investor Services
P.0. Box 43036

Providence, Rl 02940-3036
(877) 233-3006
www.computershare.com

This annual report should be read in conjunction with Newell Rubbermaid's
2008 annual meeting proxy statement and the 2007 Form 10-K. Copies

of the proxy statement and Form 10-K may be gbtained online at
www.newellrubbermaid.com

Executive Officers

Mark D. Ketchum
President and Chief Executive Officer
Age 58  Joined company 2005

Hartley D. Blaha
President, Corparate Development
Age 42 loined company 2003

Paul G. Boitmann
President, Sales Operations & Global Wal-Mart
Age 47 Joined company 2001

William A. Burke
Group President, Tools & Hardware
Age 47 Joined company 2003

Jay D. Gould
Group President, Home & Family
Age 48 Joined company 2006

Raymond J. Johnson
President, Glabal Manufacturing & Supply Chain
Age 52 Joined company 2002

Dale L. Matschullat
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Age 62 Joined company 1989

Magnus R. Nicolin
President, Newell Rubbermaid Europe, Middle East and Africa
Age 51 Joined company 2006

James ). Roberts
Executive Group President, Office Products and Cleaning, Organization & Décor
Age 49 Joined company 2001

1. Patrick Robinson
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Age 52 Joined company 2001

1. Eduardo Sent
President, Newell Rubbermaid Latin America
Age 49 Joined company 2004

|
Gordon C. Steele |
Senior Vice President, Program Management Office and
Chief Information Officer
Age 56 Joined company 2005

James M. Sweet
Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Corporate Communications
Age 55  Joined company 2004

Theodore W. Woehrle
Senior Vice President, Marketing & Brand Management
Age 46 Joined company 2007

© Mixed Sources
Product group fram weli-managed
forests, controlled sources and
recycled wood or fiber

F SC www.lsc.org Cert no. SC5-COC-00648
© 1996 Forest Stewardship Council |
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Newell Rubbermaid Inc.
108 Flenlake Parkway, Suite 300
i Atlanta, GA 30328
www.newellrubbermaid.com




